CITY OF ELKO
CITY MANAGER
1751 COLLEGE AVENUE
ELKO, NEVADA 89801
(775) 777-7110/FAX (775) 777-7119

The Elko City Council will meet in regular session on Tuesday, May 12, 2020
at 4:00 P.M. — 7:.00 P.M,, P.D.T. utilizing GoToMecting.com
Please joir —-- = —-4*=— == oo mommmendes debded ~- cartphone.

Attached with this notice is the agenda for said meeting of the Council.
In accordance with NRS 241.020. the nublic notice and agenda was posted on the City of Elko
Website he State of Nevada’s Public Notice Website,
and in the following locations:

ELKO CITY HALL
1751 College Avenue, Eike, NV 89801

Date: Time Posted: Thursday, May 7. 2020 at 8:30 a.m.
Posted by: Kim Wilkinson Administrative Assistan

Tha  nuhklic mav  rcantact Kim Wilkinson by phone at (775)777-7110 or email at
0 request supporting materi~! far tha mantina dacerihad herein. The agenda
AL AUPPULLIIE, LAICLLaL 1D avadlable on the Clty website a

The public can view or participate in the virtual meeting on a computer, laptop, tablet or smart phone by
reaictarina Puhlic Comment and questions can also be received by calling (775) 777-0590 or by emailing:

THormn Sodan cemes s #fon e Funmmms mronoes moeeee e ¢~~ +~Ylet ar smartphane.

You can also dinl in ncine vaur nhone,
United States
Access Codce: 120-310 7-237

New to GoToMeeting? Get the ann now and be readv when your first meeling starts:

Dated this 7" day of May, 2020

NOTICE TO PERSONS WITH DISABILITIES

Members of the public who are disabled and require : " tance at the meeting are
requested to notify the Elko City Council, 1751 Col 01, or by calling (775)
T77-7110.

Clis vy wany srasssagea

Elko, Nevada



CITY OF ELKO
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA
REGULAR MEETING
4:00 P.M., P.D.T., TUESDAY., MAY 12, 2020
ELKO CITY HALL, 1751 COLLEGE AVENUE, ELKO, NEVADA
GoToMeeting.com

https://glabal.gotomeeting.com/join/126317237

CALL TO ORDER

The Agenda for this meeting of the City of Elko City Council has been posted for this date
and time in accordance with State of Nevada Emergency Directive 006. The public can
view or participate in the virtual meeting on a computer, laptop, tablet or smart phone by
registering at the link above.

ROLL CALL

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and

discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item

on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda

and identified as an item for possible action. Comments may be made through

GoToMeeting.com. or by calling (775) 777-0590, or email comments to:
ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: April 28,2020  Regular Session

APPROPRIATIONS

A. Review and possible approval of Warraats, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

B. Review and possible approval of Great Basin Engineering Warrants, and matters

related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

C. Consideration and possible award of bid for Snow Removal Equipment contingent
on funding by the Federal Aviation Administration through Airport Improvement
Grant #51, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Council previously authorized Staff to apply for FAA Grant Application #AIP 51
on March 12, 2019. On April 14, 2020, City Counci! authorized Staff to solicit bids.
Bids were opened on May 7, 2020. The project consists of acquiring new Snow
Removal Equipment (SRE), i.e., truck, plow, and de-icing sprayer. This grant is
fully funded by the FAA with no local match required. Staff will provide a

5/12/2020 City Council Agenda 1



recommendation from Jviation, Inc. to award the bid. As a reminder, the FAA will
award grants based on bids. JF

II. SUBDIVISIONS

A,

Review, consideration, and possible approval of Final Map No. 1-20, filed by Keily
Builders, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Townhomes at Ruby
View involving the proposed division of approximately 1.297 acres of property into
10 lots for residential development and 1 common lot within the R (Single-Family
and Multiple-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The subject property is located on the south side of Indian View Heights Drive near
the intersection of Griswold Drive (APN 001-530-026). The Planning Commission
considered this item on May 5, 2020, and took action to forward a recommendation
to conditionally approve Final Map 1-20. MR

Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 2-20, filed by
Koinonia Development, LP, for the development of a subdivision entitled Mountain
View Townhomes Unit | involving the proposed division of approximately 3.27
acres of property into 12 townhouse lots for residential development, 1 common
lot, and | remainder parcel for future development within the CT (Commercial
Transitional) Zoning District, and matlers related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

The subject property is located on the south side of N 5" Street at the intersection
of Mary Way. (APN 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-099, and
a portion of 001-610-075). The Planning Commission considered this item on May
5, 2020, and took action to forward a recommendation to conditionally approve
Final Map 2-20. MR

III. NEW BUSINESS

A

5/12/2020

Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Performance/Maintenance
Agreemeni for subdivision improvements associated with the Mountain View
Townhomes Unit 1 subdivision, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Elko City Code 3-3-21 requires the subdivider to have executed and filed an
agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision
improvements, including stipulations on the timeframe for when those
improvements are to be completed, and to post a performance puarantee in
accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-22. As part of the conditions of approval for
Final Map 2-20, the Planning Commission recommended that the agreement be
approved by the City Council and be entered into by the developer within 30 days
of the City Council’s approval of the Final Map. MR

City Council Agenda 2



5/12/2020

Review, consideration, and possible approval of a slope easement for grading
associated with the Mountain View Townhomes subdivision, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Due to the existing topography of the development site, the applicant’s engineer is
proposing off-site grading onto City of Elko-owned property (a portion of
Mountain View Park). A condition of approval of the Tentative Map was that a
slope easement be granted to allow for this off-site grading,

This slope easement was considered by the City Council at the April 28, 2020
meeting. However, the recommended motion presented by staff was incorrect. At
this time, staff is bringing this item back for an appropriate motion. MR

Review, consideration, and possible approval of a public utility easement
associated with the Mountain View Townhomes subdivision, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The project site is located adjacent to an existing drainage channel. The approved
Tentative Map shows the onsite drainage being directed to this drainage channel
via a public utility and drainage easement. A condition of approval of the Tentative
Map was that a public utility and drainage easement be granted to allow for this
drainage movement. MR

Review, constderation, and possible approval of a Performance/Maintenance
Agreement for subdivision improvements associated with the Townhomes at Ruby
View subdivision, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Elke City Code 3-3-21 requires the subdivider to have executed and filed an
agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision
improvements, including stipulations on the timeframe for when those
improvements are to be completed, and to post a performance guarantee in
accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-22. As part of the conditions of approval for
Final Map 1-20, the Planning Commission recommended that the agreement be
approved by the City Council and be entered into by the developer within 30 days
of the City Council’s approval of the Final Map. MR

Review, consideration, and approval of the 2020 City of Elko Land Inventory
update, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

City of Elko Land Inventory spreadsheet is to be updated when necessary. Planning
Commission reviewed the modifications at their May 5, 2020 meeting and
recommended to City Council to approve the updated land inventory. CL

Consideration and possible acceptance of Federal Aviation Administration CARES
ACT Grant, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Sccurity {CARES) signed into law by
the President on March 27, 2020, includes $10 billicn in funds to be awarded as

City Council Agenda 3



economic relief to eligible U.S. airports affected by the prevention of, preparation
for, and response to the COVID-19 pandemic. Additionally, the CARES Act
provides new funds distributed by various formulas for all airports that are part of
the national airport system. An airport owner/sponsor may use these funds for any
purpose for which airport revenues may be lawfully used. JF

IV. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES

A.

Review, consideration, and possible action to propose an amendment to Elko City
Code Title 8, Chapter 2, Section 3-2 entitled “Mandatory Installation of Conduit”
and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 852, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Elko City Code Section 8-2-3-2 requires a person undertaking a public works
project or conducting a private excavation within a public right-of-way to instail
underground communications infrastructure on behalf of the City. The underground
communications infrastructure is automatically owned by the City upon
installation, at which time the City reimburses the permittee for the cost of
installation. The proposed amendment to City Code Section 8-2-3-2 would permit
telecommunications providers to retain exclusive use of underground
communications infrastructure for up to five years afier installation in private
excavations, so long as the City is not obligated to reimburse the
telecommunications providers for the cost of installation during that period.
Permittees would be required to offer underground communications infrastructure
for dedication to the City prior to reimbursement for the cost of installation. MR

First Reading of Ordinance No. 853, an ordinance amending title 5, Chapter 3, Section 1,
of the Elko City Code entitled “Definitions for Animals and Fowl”, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

On Apn! 28, 2020, the City Council initiated this ordinance at the request of a City
of Elko resident to increase the number of laying hens allowed at private residences,
for noncommercial use from two to four. KW

V. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

A.

5/12/2020

Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for the vacation of a
portion of the Juniper Street and 6™ Street Right-of-Way, consisting of an area
approximately 3,636 sq. ft., filed by Brian and Dena Starkey, and processed as
Vacation No. 1-20, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City of Elko issued a license agreement in 1987 and another in 1999 to occupy
the area requested to be vacated by this petition. There have been three (3) property
owners since that license agreement was issued, and no new license agreements
have been issued. The applicant purchased the property in 2018, and would like to
vacate any excess Right-of-Way. CL

City Council Agenda 4



Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day Temporary Retail Liquor License
and issue a Regular Packaged Liquor License, to Jaskaran Raj and Mandeep Kaur,
DBA Our Store, located at 1015 5™ Street, Elko, NV 89801, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Review and consideration of a request from Elko High school Graduation Parade
Committee to utilize a different parade route as well as a request for the City to
utilize the community donation fund to pay the parade fee, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City Clerk’s Office received an application by the Elko High School
Graduation Parade Committee to hold a parade for graduation due to the COVID-
19 situation. The parade route is in the agenda packet. The committee is also

requesting the City utilize the Community Donation Fund to pay the parade fee.
KW

VI. REPORTS

SOZEZLRS-TEIOMmMOOWR

Mayor and City Council
City Manager

Assistant City Manager
Utilities Director

Public Works

Atrport Manager

City Attormey

Fire Chief

Police Chief

City Clerk

City Planner

Development Manager
Financial Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director
Civil Engineer

Building Official

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. Comments may be made through
GaToMeetinocom. or by calling (775) 777-0590, or email comments to:

5/12/2020

ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

City Council Agenda 5



NOTE:

The Mayor, Mayor Pro Tempore, or other Presiding Officer of the City Council
reserves the right to change the order of the agenda, and if the agenda has not been
completed, to recess the meeting and continue on another specified date and time.
Additionally, the City Council reserves the right to combine two or more agenda
items, and/or remove an item from the agenda, or delay discussion relating to an
item on the agenda at any time.

ADJOURNMENT

5/12/2020

Curtis Calder
City Manager

City Council Agenda 6



City of Elko )
County of Elko )
State of Nevada ) SS  April 28,2020

The City Council of the City of Elko, State of Nevada met for a special meeting beginning
at 4:00 p.m., Tuesday, April 28, 2020. Due to the COVID-19 pandemic the meeting was held via
GoTo Webinar.

This meeting was called to order by Mayor Reece Keener. He stated the agenda for this
meeting has been posted for this date and time in accordance with State of Nevada Emergency
Directive 006. The public can participate by phone, tablet, laptop, or computer by registering with
the Goto Webinar link provided in the agenda. Questions can be sent to cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov.

CALL TO ORDER
ROLL CALL
Mayor Present: Reece Keener

Council Present: Councilwoman Mandy Simons
Councilman Robert Schmidtlein
Councilman Chip Stone
Councilman Bill Hance

City Staff Present: Curtis Calder, City Manager
Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager
Dale Johnson, Utilities Director
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Candi Quilici, Accounting Manager
Jan Baum, Financial Services Director
Dennis Strickland, Public Works Director
Bob Thibault, Civil Engineer
James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director
Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Jim Foster, Airport Manager
Matt Griego, Fire Chief
Dave Stanton, City Attorney
Ty Trouten, Police Chief
Diann Byington, Recording Secretary

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC
Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the pubiic, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item

on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. Comments may be made through

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 1 0f 16



GoToWebinarcom, or by calling (775) 777-0590, or email comments to:
cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

There were no public comments.

APPROVAL OF MINUTES: April 7, 2020 Special Session
April 14, 2020 Regular Session

The minutes were approved by general consent.
There were some technical issues getting the speakers on the line for the presentations.

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said the three new cases of COVID-19 in Elko County that were
reported in the newspaper, are out of West Wendover and were previous positives in the March
timeframe, but were somehow recalculated into the Elko count,

Chief Griego, Fire Chief, said they didn’t have much more information on that. Dr, Putnam was
doing some research on those cases. It will be difficult to do any contact tracing on those subjects
since this was back in March. They were treated in Utah and the paper trail got lost getting back
to the State and then to Elko County.

Mayor Keener asked if the cases were back in March, are they recovered yet.

Chief Griepo answered they are. They are considered recovered now but this was a late posting
of positive cases.

Mayor Keener spoke about challenges people have had with unemployment.

Curtis Calder said he was looking forward to hearing from Mr. Ellison regarding this and other
subjects.

IL CONSENT AGENDA

A. Review, consideration, and possible appointment of Elko County Family Court
Master Andrew Mierins as a Disciplinary Appeal Hearing Officer for the express
purpose of conducting a disciplinary appeal hearing, pursuant to the City of Elko
Human Resources Policy Manual, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Elko Police Department to
apply for a Services-Training-Officers-Prosecutors (STOP) Grant in the amount of
thirty thousand dollars ($30,000), to assist with costs associated with the part-time
Domestic Violence Services Advocate (DVSA) position, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The DVSA works with victims, officers and the District Attorney’s office to assist

domestic violence victims through the criminal process, Since January 1, 2020, the
Eiko Police Department has received 239 domestic violence related calls, and filed

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 2 of 16



4/28/2020

72 cases with the District Attorney’s Office. The STOP Grant requires a cash
match. TT

Review, consideration, and possible approval of the Elko Police Chief applying for
an Office of Criminal Justice Assistance (OCJA) Grant in the amount of thirty-two
thousand dollars ($32,000), for costs associated with the Elko Combined Narcotics
Unit (ECNU), and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Elko Police Department would like to apply for an Office of Crimina} Justice
Assistance (OCJA) Grant in the amount of thirty-two thousand doilars ($32,000),
for costs associated with the operations of the Elko Combined Narcotics Unit
(ECNU); OCJA requires no cost-match. TT

Review, consideration, and possible approval of the Elko Police Chief to apply for
an Office of Criminal Justice Assistance (OCJA) Grant. The grant, valued at eighty-
seven thousand, eight hundred and eighty-two dollars ($87,882.00) would be used
to replace three Elko Police Department, Bomb Squad explosive resistant suits
including helmets, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Elko Police Department would like to apply for an OCJA Grant for the
replacement of three Elko Police Department, Bomb Squad explosive resistant suits
including helmets.

The explosive resistant suits and helmets are necessary for the Bomb Squad
members to safely and effectively place equipment and/or manipulate suspected
explosive devices. These suits, like the ballistic vests, have a five-year shelf life
and the three we currently own are all expired. Each suit is twenty-nine thousand,
two hundred and ninety-four dollars ($29,294.00). We are seeking to replace the
three expired suits for a total cost of eighty-seven thousand, eight hundred and
eighty-two dollars $87,882.00 dollars. There are no matching fund requirements.
TT

Review, consideration, and possible approval for the Fire Department to apply for
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant through the
Department of Homeland Security to continue the Volunteer Retention and
Recruitment Position, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The City of Elko Fire Department Fire Department would like to apply for the
2019 FEMA Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant.
The application would apply for a Volunteer Retention and Recruitment
Coordinator position. The current grant that has lasted four years will be expiring
in November of 2020. This position has been a great success to increasing our
volunteer firefighting force, while certifying all individuals to national standards.
There is no match by the City for this grant. JS

Review and possible extension of “Administrative Leave with Pay” for full-time
employees sent home pursuant to Governor Sisolak’s amended shutdown order,

City Council Minutes Page 3 of 16



starting May 1, 2020 through May 16, 2020, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

Due to Governor Sisolak’s extension of the statewide business shutdown beyond
April 30, 2020, the City of Elko needs a mechanism to keep affected full-time
employees in a pay status through May 16, 2020. CC

*x A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilwoman Simons,
to approve the Consent Agenda.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
III. PERSONNEL

A. Review, consideration, and possible approval of proposed City of Elko Human
Resources Emergency Family and Medical Leave Policy, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

The Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) was signed into law by
President Trump on March 18, 2020 and is in effect from Aprl 1, 2020 through
December 31, 2020. As part of the FFCRA, the Emergency Family and Medical
Leave Expansion Act (EFMLEA) provides up to 12 weeks of FMLA Leave for full-
time, part-time, or seasonal employees who meet the eligibility requirements. The
EFMLEA is available for any eligible employee who is unable to work or telework,
due to a need for leave to care for his/her child whose school or place of care has
been closed, or childcare provider is unavailable for reasons related to COVID-19.
Public employers are covered under this Act. This POOL/PACT policy provides
the details of Emergency Family and Medical Leave eligibility, and use. SS

Susie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager, explained this is the first part of the Act and covers
leave for people who need to be out to take care of their children while schools and daycares are
closed. It provides for 12 weeks of leave.
Mayor Keener called for public comment without a response.
s A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilwoman Simons,
to approve the City of Elko Human Resources Emergency Family and Medical Leave Policy
as presented, effective April 28, 2020.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

L PRESENTATIONS

B. Report by County Manager Robert Stokes, and matters related thereto.
INFORMATION ONLY - NON-ACTION ITEM

Robert Stokes, County Manager, offered to relay some of the information he has from John Ellison
regarding his presentation. Mr. Ellison and Senator Goicoechea have been getting calls from

4/28/2020 City Counci] Minutes Page 4 of 16



concemed citizens regarding their frustrations with the State unemployment process. There is a
meeting tomorrow aftemoon and one of the items will be Senator Goicoechea giving a report on
this. He received the notice about the new director for DETR. He noted that the claims have gone
up significantly since the COVID-19 shutdown. There have also been problems with the
unemployment system going down. Assemblyman Ellison told him he had been hearing some
heartbreaking stories from citizens. He understood that once someone was in the system, they will
get benefits dating back to when they filed, including the federal stimulus monies.

Mayor Keener noted there was an agenda item on the County meeting for tomorrow that will state
Elko County as Stage One Qualified of reopening.

Mr. Stokes said the City Council must be receiving the same calls from business owners that they
are, asking when they can open their businesses. The Commission will be taking a look at that
tomorrow. They have sent a letter to the Governor asking him to look at a policy that is not “one
size fits all” for the state. The rural areas did not get the same impact as the rest of the state. The
Governor plans to do a press conference either tomorrow or Thursday night to address the recovery
issue.

Councilman Hance asked if the PUA side of unemployment for the self-employed was addressed.
He has tried to get answers from DETR but they just keep telling him they don’t have the
computers set up for it. He felt we needed to put some pressure on the state to get that going.

Mr. Stokes said they don’t have any more information than he had. Delmo Andreozzi was present
in his office, who is also part of the Emergency Economic Management Recover Task Force.

Delmo Andreozzi, County Commissioner, thanked everyone for ali their efforts. [t has been a
heavy load for citizens and especially the elected officials. They have been going through a
process to implement and convene the recovery portion. We have been in the response phase and
two weeks ago we convened our first recovery meeting. Last Friday they met as a group. They
have an outline of what they are trying to do. They would like to have a regional recovery plan
but they are still working on the framework. [t is difficult to do this in a short period of time and
probably should have started this a month ago.

Mayor Keener thanked Mr. Andreozzi for all the work and time he has been putting in on this
committee. He looks forward to achieving a successful completion for the County getting the
economy restarted and recovered.

A. Presentation by Assemblyman John Ellison regarding COVID-19 Unemployment
Insurance Claims and the State of Nevada Department of Employment, Training,
and Rehabilitation, and matters related thereto. INFORMATION ONLY —NON-
ACTION ITEM

John Ellison, Assemblyman, said Mr. Stokes and Andreozzi both did a good job in their reports.
He has had lots of calls coming in from people that cannot get help with their unemployment. One
woman was on hold for 36 hours and never got through. He is asking the City and County to send
a letter to the Governor’s Office explaining we have some emergency situations with families not
getting money. It is critical.

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page S of 16




Mayor Keener asked if the unemployment numbers in Nevada are understated because the state
hasn’t been able to process the claims.

Mr. Ellison said the people operating the computers are not able to access the information. He is
getting calls from all over from people begging for help. He doesn’t know what else to do. The
Mormon church has stepped up with their food bank, getting food to the people. The money is
there but the DETR system is broken.

Mayor Keener felt a letter was something the City could do. He asked Mr. Ellison if they should
forward the letter to him to send to the State, if there would be a bigger impact if they did.

Mr. Ellison said he would be happy to take care of that for them. If something isn’t done soon,
there will be a big impact. He has heard from some business owners that have told him they will
have to close their doors for good. He was hoping to hear from Mr. Pinkston today about this.
Some barber shops are saying they will have to shut their doors because they aren’t getting stimulus
money or unemployment. They are not getting any help at all. He felt some of these businesses
could open.

Mayor Keener opened up public comment.

Gary Pinkston, Meridian Pacific, Elko Junction Center, Kohl’/Cal Ranch Center, explained they
operate shopping centers in many states. It is interesting that the nature of the smaller communities
usually has a better response. This shutdown is damaging to their tenants. Petco is doing 80% of
its normal volume. The public is trying to shop and the tenants are trying to open. Every day this
moves forward it makes it harder for them to reopen. The big guys can survive but it is killing the
little operators. He is hoping that Elko can open up because of the low number of cases out here.
He would be willing to send a letter too.

Mayor Keener thanked Mr. Pinkston for cailing. He has sent a letter to Govemnor Sisolak, urging
him to let Elko reopen in a cautious and methodical manner. He hasn’t heard back from his office
yet. Hopefully, there will be some good information from the Governor later this week. We are
doing everything we can to get things reopened in Elko.

Mr. Pinkston asked who would be enforcing the shutdown order if a business was to reopen in
Elko.

Mayor Keener said the Governor’s declaration expires April 30, 2020. We haven’t seen anything
in writing past that date. As it stands, after April 30, the Elko Police Department will do just the
minimum obligation they have to, serving a document that states they are in violation of the order.
If the Governor’s Office wants to enforce anything, they will have to do it themselves.

Mr. Pinkston said if there is any use for his parking lots, they are available. If someone needs to
set up a testing station, they have about 40 acres available.

Mayor Keener thanked him again for all he does for the community. The entire community is
looking forward to businesses opening up again.

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 6 of 16



Mr. Ellison said he received a letier yesterday from the Cosmetology Board, that stated anyone
opened would be in violation and their permits would be revoked. He copied it to the Mayor.
Anyone that does open, their state permits will be pulled.

Mayor Keener asked about the duration of that.

Mr. Ellison said he heard it would be permanent but he found out later from an attorney that would
be illegal and unconstitutional.

Curtis Calder, City Manager, asked Mr. Ellison if there were any plans from the Legisiature to
challenge the emergency directives like other states have. What is the Legislature’s plans?

Mr. Ellison said they will have a caucus meeting tonight at 6:30 pm to see what they want to do.
He sent a letter off today. California just announced that all schoois will be shut down until after
July. Unfortunately, the Governor isn’t being responsive to anyone’s correspondence right now.

III. PERSONNEL (Cont.)

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of proposed City of Elko Human
Resources Emergency Paid Sick Leave Policy, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

The Families First Coronavirus Response Act (FFCRA) was signed into law by
President Trump on March 18, 2020 and is in effect from April 1, 2020 through
December 31, 2020. As part of the FFCRA, the Emergency Paid Sick Leave
(EPSLA) provides 2 weeks (up to 80 hours) of paid sick leave for full-time, part-
time, or seasonal employees who meet the eligibility requirements. Public
employers are covered under this Act. This POOL/PACT policy provides the
details of Emergency Paid Sick Leave eligibility, and use. SS

Susie Shurtz, Human Resources Manager, said this is the second part of that legislation. This
allows for another 80 hours of sick leave. It is required to be taken in one lump sum. We have
had some interest in this already.

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said we are required to fund this and didn’t think the City would be
reimbursed for it. The City will be absorbing it.

** A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
approve the City of Elko Human Resources Emergency Paid Sick Leave Policy, as presented,
effective April 28, 2020,

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

IV. APPROPRIATIONS
C. Review, consideration, and possible action to award a bid for the WRF East Primary

Clarifier Recoating Project 2020, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 7 of 16



This is a yearly maintenance project, which rotates between five (5) clarifiers. Bids
were opened on February 19, 2020, and Council rejected all bids for noncompliance
on March 10, 2020. Staff was directed to rebid the project, and bids were opened
on April 20, 2020. A Bid Tally Sheet is included as supplemental agenda
information with Staff findings. DJ

Dale Johnson, Utilities Director, explained that they are asking for approval of a bid award for the
WRF East Primary Clarifier. The low bidder was MMI & Industrial Services for $96,155.

*x A motion was made by Councilvoman Simons, scconded by Councilman Stone, to
award the bid for the WRF East Primary Clarifier Recoating Project 2020 to MMI &
Industrial Services for the basc plus all the alternates for $96,155.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
V. NEW BUSINESS

A, Review, consideration, and possible approval of the Second Amendment to the
Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreement between the City of Elko and Bechive
Broadband LLC, amending Section 2 of the agreement, granting a revocable license
to pull communications cable in underground conduit owned by the City of Elko
Iocated within City Rights-of-Way and amending Section 10 of the agreement,
allowing for a reduction in Franchise Fees by resolution of the City Council, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Council has recently approved Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreements including a
provision granting a revocable permit for occupancy of City owned conduit.
Additionally, Council passed Resolution No. 4-20 on February 11, 2020 waiving
Franchise Fees for telecommunications carriers beginning July 1, 2020 for a period
of five (5} years. Commencing on June 30, 2025, and continuing thereafter, the
telecommunication carrier shall pay the Franchise Fee as stipulated in the
agreement. The proposed amendment addresses the issues referenced above. SAW

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, explained we are trying to have all the providers be on
the same playing field. A couple franchise agreements have included these provisions. The next
item deais with White Cloud.

¥ A motion was made by Councilman Hance, scconded by Councilman Stone, to
approve the Sccond Amendment to the Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreement between the
City of Elko and Beehive Broadband LLC, amending Section 2 of the agreement, granting a
revocable license to pull communications cable in underground conduit ewned by the City
of Elko located within City Rights-of-Way and amending Section 10 of the agrecement,
allowing for a reduction in Franchise Fees by resolution of the Council.

Tlre motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review, consideration, and possible approval of the Second Amendment to the
Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreement between the City of Elko and White Cloud

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 8 of 16



Communications, Incorporated, amending Section 2.1 of the agreement, allowing
for a reduction in franchise fees by resolution of the City Council, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Council passed Resolution No. 4-20 on February 11, 2020, waiving franchise fees
for telecommunications carriers beginning July 1, 2020 for a period of five (5)
years. Commencing on June 30, 2025, and continuing thereafier the
telecommunication carrier shall pay the franchise fee as stipulated in the agreement.
SAW

Mr. Wilkinson explained with this amendment, White Cloud already has a provision granting the
revocable permit for the use of the conduit, so we didn’t need to address that. This is strictly
related to the franchise fee.

** A motion was made by Councilman Stone, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
approve the Sccond Amendment to the Non-Exclusive Franchise Agreement between the
City of Elko and White Cloud Communications Incorporated, amending Section 2.1 of the
agrcement, allowing for a reduction in franchise fees by resolution of the City Council.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

C. Review and possible approval of the Skywest Landing and Lease Deferral Policy,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Staff will provide the Skywest Landing and Lease Deferral Policy for City Council
consideration. JB

Jan Baum, Financia} Services Director, said this policy was written because SkyWest is asking for
a deferral of their landing and lease payments. The way this is written, it will be a five month
deferral with all fees paid by the end of the year. There will be a minimum charge of $25 per
month for each monthly landing and the terminal lease payments being deferred.

Mayor Keener asked if this is standard in other markets.

Ms. Baum answered yes and SkyWest has asked all other airports for similar deferrals.

il A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to

approve the SkyWest Landing and Lease Deferral Policy.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
VI. PETITIONS, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS
A. Review and consideration of a request from Becky Tyree to consider amending the
Elko City Code 5-3-1 changing the number of laying hens not used for commercial

purposes ailowed in private residences, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 9 of 16



The City received email correspondence requesting to amend City Code 5-3-1 that
allows twao laying hens not used for commercial purposes in private residences. The
email is in the agenda packet. KW

Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk, explained the email correspondence was included in the agenda
packet. It was someone requesting the City allow more than just the two hens for larger families.
The applicant does not appear to be online for comment.

Mayor Keener said he knows there is a lot of this going on. An employee of his lives on a farm
and she is having a hard time getting chicks. He understands the request. If you are going to
entertain doing something like this, perhaps include an expiration on it.

Counciiwoman Simons suggested moving this to four or even six hens allowed. She knows of
some families with three hens. If you have a large family and you rely on the hens for eggs, that
is not enough.

Mayor Keener asked if she requested a specific number. (no)

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said he has had some correspondence with the applicant and she
didn’t really talk about specifics. You can get into a lot of technicalities with lots sizes, etc. He
has never received one complaint about hens, but maybe Planning has. He didn’t see much
problem doubling it to four hens. At this point we are just initiating the ordinance change.

Mayor Keener said he got a text message regarding this item and she indicated there have been
noise and smell issues with too many chickens. Hopefully four won’t be too many for this. If it
becomes a problem, perhaps we can come back and revisit this.

Councilman Schmidtlein asked if we wanted to include an end date.

Councilman Stone just thought we should increase the number to four and leave it at that, If it
becomes a nuisance or a problem, it can be addressed.

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner, said they have had some complaints but these complaints have been
warranted. Once house had ten hens in the back yard.

b A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
begin the process of amending the Elko City Code 5-3-1, to change the number of laying hens
not used for commercial purposes from two to four, allowed in private residences.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for a slope easement

of approximately .75 acres along the southern portion of approved Tentative Map

14-19 (Mountain View Townhomes), filed by Koinonia Development, LP, and
matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Due to the existing topography of the development site, the applicant’s engineer is
proposing off-site grading onto City of Elko-owned property (a portion of

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 10 0of 16



Mountain View Park). A condition of approval of the Tentative Map was that a
slope easement be granted to allow for this off-site grading. SAW

Scott Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager, explained when they looked at this proposed
development, they purchased a portion of the slope area to accommodate the proposed subdivision.
After that, they started looking at the grading and we feel it is a good idea to minimize the slope
in that area. In order to accomplish that, they will be running that slope out into this area. He
recommended approval.

i A motion was made by Councilman Stone, scconded by Councilman Schmidtlein, to
accept the petition for a slope casement and direct staff to refer the matter to the Planning
Commission.

The motion passed unaninously. (5-0)

C. Review, consideration, and possible action pertaining to a request to purchase
approximately 2,800 sq. fi. of City owned parce! referred to as APN 001-01R-001,
and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

City Council approved a petition to sell or lease approximately 900 sq. ft. to the
applicant at their February 11, 2020 meeting, The applicant has since requested a
larger parcel, 70x40, and has submitted a new application.

Pursuant to NRS 268.063, the City Council may adopt a resolution which triggers
an “economic development” exception, finding that it is in the best interest of the
public to sell the property without offering the property to the public. SAW

Mr. Wilkinson explained Safelink had considered the purchase of 900 sq. fi. just off the cul-de-
sac on the west side of the 5™ Street Bridge. Subsequent to that request, they determined they need
a larger piece of ground to accommodate their equipment. They proposed 2,800 sq. ft. is needed
for their full build-out. We are looking at a possible economic development determination in order
to sell the property.

Mayor Keener noted it is the same as heard in February but a larger piece of property.

b A motion was made by Councilman Hance, seconded by Councilwoman Simons, to
authorize staff to obtain the required appraisal for the proposed sale of a 2,800 sq. ft. portion
of APN: 001-01R-001 and proceed with the statutory process for sclling the parcel! pursuant
to NRS 268.063, subject to the Council accepting the appraisal.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

D. Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition requesting that the
City of Elko provide | buffer tube of fiber in existing fiber paths to CC
Communications in exchange for CC Communications providing the City of Elko
a buffer of the same liner feet within the city, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 11 of 16



The City of Elko approved a non-exclusive franchise agreement with the CC
Communications on February 11, 2020. The non-exclusive franchise agreement
does not provide for the use of City owned fiber. CC Communications is requesting
the City consider allowing CC Communication use of the existing fiber in exchange
for an equivalent city use of CC Communications fiber. A separate agreement
between the parties would be required. SAW

Mr. Wilkinson explained none of the franchise agreements allow for the use of City fiber or the
conduit in which City fiber exists. CC Communications has taken a look at our maps and has
determined there will be some benefit for the Council to consider. Lepal has taken a look at the
NRS and believes we can develop an agreement under the NRS that will allow this to occur.

Mark Feest, GM CC Communications, thanked Council for allowing him to present this request.
CC Communications sat down with the Mayor and the Assistant City Manager and discussed the
assets the City had. We felt the City owned fibers down Idaho Street were not going to be used.
We wanted to purchase some of those fibers but found out there was an opinion by the City
Aftorney that without an appraisal, it cannot be sold. We looked for an avenue that would benefit
everyone. We proposed an even exchange of linear foot by linear foot. The fiber will just sit there
unused otherwise, even though it does have value.

Councilman Hance asked if CC Communications had any plans to build out in Elko.

Mr. Feest answered they plan to serve anyone that their fiber passes. There are businesses and
residences along their proposed paths that they would be willing to serve. That is why they got
the franchise agreement rather just permits to bury fiber.

Mr. Wilkinson said CC Communications also reached out to Dennis Strickland. They had
discussion about intefligent signaling. This route would provide some of that opportunity of
having the fiber on 12" and the capability of having it run to the Public Works Office for the
intelligent signaling. The details of how this would work is something several staff could sit down
and discuss with CC Communications.

Councilman Hance had some concemns regarding this because CC Communications is going to be
servicing a neighboring community with this fiber. The City would not gain the benefit of it. We
can put in our own fiber. Fiber is not a doliar for dollar for what you get. They are getting a mile
of very valuable fiber but we may not get the same value in the fiber we get.

Mr. Wilkinson said the NRS doesn’t look at dollar for dollar. The infrastructure in ldaho Street
right now is City owned and not being used.

Mayor Keener said this is not exclusive and could be open to other providers if they petition
Council.

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, mentioned the NRS has several different mechanisms that can be
used in exchanges. There is a provision that if it is going to be an exchange for property, subject
to some limitations, we have to pay or convey property worth an amount the current appraised
value of the property being exchanged. If it is going to be exchanged it does have to be equal to
the current appraised value.

4/28/2020 City Counci! Minutes Page 12 of 16



Mayor Keener asked if we are going to exchange a mile of very valuable fiber down Idaho Street,
we may get four miles of another area.

Mr. Stanton said yes, that is a possibility.
** A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilwoman Simons,
to accept a petition requesting the City of Elko provide one buffer tube of fiber in existing
fiber paths to CC Communications in exchange for CC Communications providing the City
of Elko a buffer the same linear feet within the City cqual to the current appraised valuc of
the property being exchanged.

Councilman Hance said they are asking for valuable fiber without offering anything of equal value.
We have no reason to run twelve fibers to individual City facilities. We dropped our franchise
fees to zero and nobody is wanting to provide anything in the City, In Spring Creek they are
digging in dirt to provide that fiber at a lower cost. He can support this motion but wants to be
involved in the agreement process.

The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)
VII. PUBLIC HEARINGS

A Review, consideration, and possible adoption of Emergency Ordinance No. EO-
001, an emergency ordinance deferring certain utility fees, penalties, and charges
to assist businesses adversely affected by the COVID-19 Pandemic, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

A copy of the proposed emergency ordinance has been included in the agenda
packet for review. CC

Curtis Calder, City Manager, explained at the request of some public at the last meeting, for some
relief in water billing, we came up with this emergency ordinance for deferrals for businesses not
on water meters. We need to cover our costs so this may or may not get a lot of takers. We have
some grant funding available for water meter installation.

Kelly Wooldridge pointing out that on the agenda, this is numbered EO-00! but the Ordinance
number is actually 851. She wondered if Mr. Stanton had an opinion on what ordinance number
10 use,

Dave Stanton, City Attorney, stated for the purposes of this meeting, the ordinance number didn’t
matter. The next number in line will be fine.

Ms., Wooldridge asked that when they make a motion, Ordinance No. 851 be used.

Mayor Keener cailed for public comment without a response.

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 13 of 16



** A motion was made by Councilman Schmidtlein, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
adept Ordinance No. 851.
The motion passed unanimously, (5-0)

IV.  APPROPRIATIONS (Cont.)

A. Review and possible approval of Warrants, and matters related thereto. FOR
POSSIBLE ACTION
** A motion was madc by Councilwoman Simons, scconded by Councilman Schmidtiein,

to approve the general warrants.
The motion passed unanimously. (5-0)

B. Review and possible approval of Print n’ Copy Warrants, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

bl A motion was made by Councilwoman Simons, seconded by Councilman Stone, to
approve the Print ‘N Copy warrants,

The motion passed. (4-0 Mayor Keener abstained.)
VIII. REPORTS

A. Mayor and City Council

Councilman Stone reported he was contacted by Janet Pescio regarding the
seniors living at Highland Manor that are not allowed to leave their rooms. He
set up his music and played for the seniors and it was a good time for ¢veryone.

Mayor Keener reported he met with Danny Story with the Elko Adult
Softball Leagie. They want to get their league (and other sports) up and
running again. The Elko Rotary Club asks that if there is someone with a need,
they may be able to help out. They are looking at parades and other events for
the residents. He will be reaching out to Council and staff to help with sonme
projects. He is getting a large volume of phone calls from the public and hopes
to have more information for everyone soon from the Governor.

B. City Manager

Curtis Calder updated everyone on what is going on with staffing. This was
the first week they brought some people back to work. We went from about 33%
being home to about 15% being home. This is where we will probably stay until
the emergency directives are lifted There was a press release last week
extending the shutdown from the previously described date of April 30. We
were anticipating a new date but one has not been released. The Attorney
General says a new date will be posted in the next day or so. We are hoping to
see something soon. Regarding the unemployment situation, he felt that was
completely unacceptable and will write a letter.

Mayor Keener noted that after this meeting, we will have to resume the RDA
meeting. Kelly Wooldridge stated there may be an issue getting back onto the
previous webinar.

Cathy Laughlin noted all was left on that agenda was reports.

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 14 of 16



o0

ZZr R

4/28/2020

Dave Stanton said there will be final public comment, terminate the City
Council Meeting, and then resume the RDA meeting. In terms of open meeting
law, you recessed the meeting so you can resume the meeting after Council
Meeting.

Assistant City Manager
Utilities Director

Dale Johnson reported they broke ground on the WRF/Water Shop
yesterday. The project is underway.

Mayor Keener said there was an issue with the screens clogging at the
WRF. Is that still an issue?

Mr. Johnson answered that doesn’t seem to be an issue right now.

Public Works
Airport Manager

Jim Foster reported they are averaging one or two people a flight, for the
midday flight. There will be no Tuesday or Saturday flights moving forward.
There will only be five days of flights a week. There is a 98% drop in
enplanements nationwide.

City Attormey
Fire Chief

Chief Griego said they are still progressing with the work at the EOC and
trying to soften the blow to the public. They are working with private industry
providers with food donations, The faith-based groups have helped with the
food deliveries. We are trying to band together countywide to provide all the
services they can. The new engine has been delivered and it is being outfitted.
He hopes to have it in service in the next week.

Police Chief

Chief Trouten reported they have been in contact with the schools regarding
graduation ceremonies. The protest that occurred last week was well behaved
and set a good example.

City Clerk

City Planner

Development Manager
Financial Services Director
Parks and Recreation Director

James Wiley reported the pool repair project will be put out to bid as soon
as the budget is complete. They will keep the pool closed during construction.

Mayor Keener asked about COVID related pool closures.

Mr. Wiley said he has heard that the swimming is safe due to chlorine and
other chemicals in the water. The showers and other parts of the facilities are
where the dangers are and need to be sanitized. They have increased the staff
in the parks for maintenance. He has a letter from Danny Story that he will
read into the record during public comments.

Civil Engineer
Building Official

City Council Minutes Page 15 of 16



COMMENTS BY THE GENERAL PUBLIC

Pursuant to N.R.S. 241, this time is devoted to comments by the public, if any, and
discussion of those comments. No action may be taken upon a matter raised under this item
on the agenda until the matter itself has been specifically included on a successive agenda
and identified as an item for possible action. Comments may be made through
GoToWebinar.com, or by calling (775) 777-0590, or email comments to:
cityclerk@elkocitynv.gov. ACTION WILL NOT BE TAKEN

James Wiley, Parks and Recreation Director, read the letter from Danny Story into the record
(Exhibit “A™).

Mayor Keener noted in the letter Danny stated that they are willing to volunteer time to help with
care and feeding of the fields. Can the City accept volunteer help in this case?

Curtis Calder, City Manager, said we have a volunteer program at the City. You have to go through
the application process like a regular employee, in order to have the appropriate workers

compensation coverage.

There being no further business, Mayor Reece Keener adjouned the meeting.

Mayor Reece Keener Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk

4/28/2020 City Council Minutes Page 16 of 16



Agenda ltem [. C.

10.

11.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Consideration and possible award of bid for Snow Removal Equipment
contingent on funding by the Federal Aviation Administration through Airport
Improvement Grant #51, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION
Meeting Date: May 12, 2020
Agenda Category: APPROPRIATION
Time Required: 5 Minutes
Background Information: Council previously authorized Staff to apply for FAA
Grant Application #AIP 51 on March 12, 2019. On April 14, 2020, City Council
authorized Staff to solicit bids. Bids were opened on May 7, 2020. The project
consists of acquiring new Snow Removal Equipment (SRE), i.e., truck, plow, and
de-icing sprayer. This grant is fully funded by the FAA with no local match
required. Staff will provide a recommendation from Jviation, Inc. to award the bid.
As a reminder, the FAA will award grants based on bids. JF
Budget Impact Statement:

Appropriation Required: $ 417, 188.00

Budget amount available:

Fund name: Airport Enterprise
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: None
Recommended Motion: Move to award bid for Snow Removal Equipment contingent
on funding by the Federal Aviation Administration through Airport Improvement
Grant #51.
Prepared By: Jim Foster, Airport Manager
Commilttee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 5/6/2020 Council Agenda Action Sheel Page 1 of 1



Agenda Item 1. A.

Sl ol o S

1.
12.
13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of Final Map No. 1-20, filed by
Kelly Builders, LLC, for the development of a subdivision entitled Townhomes at
Ruby View involving the proposed division of approximately 1.297 acres of property
into 10 lots for residential development and 1 commen lot within the R (Single-
Family and Multiple-Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020
Agenda Category: SUBDIVISION
Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information; The subject property is located on the south side of Indian
View Heights Drive near the intersection of Griswold Drive (APN 001-530-026). The
Planning Commission considered this item on May 5, 2020 and took action to
forward a recommendation to conditionally approve Final Map 1-20. MR

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Maps, Approved Construction Plans, P.C. Action
Report, Staff Report, and related correspondence.

Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Final Map 1-2@ for the Townhomes at
Ruby View subdivision subject to the findings and conditions as recommended by
the Planning Commission.

Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager
Committee/Other Apency Review: Planning Commission
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: Kelly Builders, LL.C
209 Raptor Court
Elko, NV 89801
kelly builderst frontiernet.net

Carter Engineering, LL.C
Attn: Lana Carter

P.O. Box 794

Elko, NV 89801

lanalearter @live.com

Created on 05/04/2020 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



CITY OF ELKO Website: www.elkacity.com

Planning Depa rtment Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov

1751 College Avenue + Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 777-7160 - Fax (775) 777-7219

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT
Regular Meeting of May 5, 2020

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning
Commission on May 5, 2020 pursuant to City Code Sections 3-3-7 (G)3:

Final Map No. 1-20, filed by Kelly Builders, LLC, for the development of a subdivision
entitled Townhomes at Ruby View involving the proposed division of approximately 1.297
acres of property into 10 townhouse lots for residential development and 1 common lot
within the R (Single Family and Multiple Family Residential) Zoning District, and matters
related thereto.

Subject property is located on the south side of Indian View Heights Drive at the intersection
of Griswold Drive. (APN 001-530-026)

NOW THEREFORE, upon review and consideration of the application, supporting data, public
input and testimony, the Planning Commission recommended that the City Council accept, on
behalf of the public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with
the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with the tentative
map; that the City Council approve the agreement to install improvements in accordance with the
approved construction plans that satisfies the requirements of Title 2, Chapter 3, and
conditionally approve Final Map 1-20 with conditions listed in the Staff Report dated April 20,
2020 with additions, listed as follows:

1.

\0 00

oo AW

The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code. In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Couneil.
The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30
days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

The Final Map for Townhomes at Ruby View is approved for 10 townhouse lots and |
common lol.

The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

Site disturbance shall not commence prior to approval of the project’s construction plans
by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required



inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the Iatest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works. All right-of-way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

10. Consider changing the Public Access Easement to a Reciprocal Access Easement that
benefits only the property owner.

11. Fill in the two missing dimensions along the Access Easement.

The Planning Commission’s findings to support its recommendation are the Final Map for
Townhomes at Ruby View has been presented before expiration of the subdivision proceedings
in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City Code. The Final Map is in conformance with
the Tentative Map. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and
Transportation Component of the Master Plan. The proposed devetopment conforms with
Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive). The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required
improvements in conformance with Section 3-3-17 of City Code. The Subdivider has submitted
construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of City Code. The Subdivider has
submitted plans to the City and State agencies for review to receive all required permits in
accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City Code. The Subdivider has submitted
construction plans which, having been found to be in conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City
Code, have been approved by City Staff. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a
Performance Agreement to conform to Section 3-3-21 of City Code. The Subdivider will be
required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as stipulated in the Performance
Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City Code. The proposed development
conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 of City Code. The proposed
development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code.

CMC@&M

Cathy LW, City@er

Attest:

ks

Shelby Archujeta, Planning Technician

CC:; Applicant
Michele Rambo, Development Manager (email)
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: __S5/5

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**

Title: Elm! !“QP ZQQ, l'2h Town Homes ot B[)}::j LH{JJZ

Applicant(s):

Site Location:

Current Zoning: g Date Received: 22,5 Date Public Notice: Al‘lﬁ
COMMENT: _This isfwHae divisian of 2= 129 ocves ints IO Lads

**[f additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Assistant City Manager: Date: 4 / zl / e

[LEcom pasesl d—ﬂ/’ﬂ—uﬁz AS Plﬁ Ll ﬁz T@%

S#/

Initial

City Manager: Date: Yalao
_V\}Q MMHemﬂ'LCanaqrﬂ g .

ot

Initial







Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-530-026
PARCEL SIZE: 1.297 Acres
EXISTING ZONING: {(R) Single-Family and Multiple-Family Residential.
MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (RES-MD) Residential Medium Density
EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant
BACKGROUND:

1. The Final Map for Townhomes at Ruby View has been presented before expiration of the

[

SN kW

subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Townhomes at Ruby View Tentative Map.

The City Council conditionally approved the Townhomes at Ruby View Tentative Map.
The subdivision is located on APN 001-530-026.

The proposed subdivision consists of 10 residential lots arid 1 common lot.

The total subdivided area is approximately 1.297 acres.

The proposed density is 7.71 units per acre,

No public streets are being dedicated as part of this subdivision.

Drainage and utility easements are provided along all lot lines.

. The property is located on the south side of Indian View Heights Drive at the intersection

of Griswold Drive.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:

North: Single and Multiple Residential / Developed
South: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Developed
East: Single and Multiple Residential (R) / Developed
West: Tribal Land / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is an undeveloped residential parcel.

The site abuts previous residential development to the north, churches to the south, east,
and west.

The parcel has some slope to it, which is incorporated into the design of the lots where
possible.

The property will be accessed off of Indian View Heights Drive.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

Page 2ol T



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

e City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

o City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

s City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

o City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-3-7 Final Map State (Stage III)

o City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-3-8 Content and Format of Final Map Submittal

« City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-3-9 to 3-3-16 (Inclusive) Subdivision Design Standards

o City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-3-17 to 3-3-22 (Inclusive) Public Improvements/
Guarantees

» City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 Zoning Code
Standards

e City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management
MASTER PLAN - Land use:

Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review and
approval of the Tentative Map. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review
and approval of the Tentative Map. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:
The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located within the 20-year capture zone for several City of Elko wells.
Development of the site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street
drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system.

As the project is designed, it does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE 111);

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) — The Final Map is in conformance with the zone
requirements.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) - The proposed Final Map conforms to the Tentative
Map.

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Content - The Final Map conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.

Page 3 of 7



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phasc 3

B. ldentification Data
. The Final Map identifies the subdivision and provides its location by section,
township, range, and county.
2. The Final Map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The Final Map provides a scale, north arrow, and date of preparation.
C. Survey Data
. The boundaries of the subdivision are fully balanced and closed.
2. Any exceptions are noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map is tied to a section comer.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of
the subdivision are noted on the Final Map.
D. Descriptive Data
i. The name, right-of-way lines, courses, lengths, and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the Final Map.
2. All drainage ways are noted on the Final Map.
3. All utility and public service easements are noted on the Final Map.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels, and exceptions are shown on the
Final Map.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the Final Map.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the Final Map.
7. The locations of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the Final Map with required
information.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.
E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
1. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements
and right-of-ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged with space to be certified by a
notary public.
F. Additional Information
1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the Final Map.
2. The centerline and width of each right-of-way is noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine
the boundaries of the subdivision.,
4, The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the Final Map.
5. The Final Map is located adjacent to a city boundary, which is shown on the Final
Map.
6. The Final Map identifies the location of the section lines nearest the property.
G. City to Check
I. Closure calculations have been provided. Civil improvement plans have been
approved. Drainage plans have been approved. An engineer’s estimate has been
provided.
2. The lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required Certifications
. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.
2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right-of-ways shown on the Final
Map.

Page 4 of 7



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the Final Map, certifying the signature of the City

Council.

4. The Ownes’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the Final
Map.

5. A Surveyor’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map and provides the required
language.

6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.

7. A centificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided
with the required language.

8. The engineer of record has submitted the Tentative Map and construction plans to
the state, which have been approved.

9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the Final Map
with the required language.

10. The construction plans identify the required water meters for the subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 THROUGH 3-3-16 (INCLUSIVE)

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-3-17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with this section of City code. The plans have been approved by
City staff.

SECTION 3-3-19 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all permits
in accordance with this section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-20 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with this
section of City code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter, and sidewalk as well as paving and utilities within the
Indian View Heights right-of-way.

Page 5 of 7



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phasc 3

SECTION 3-3-21 AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to this section
of City code.

SECTION 3-3-22 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with this section of City code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), AND 3-2-17

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).
FINDINGS

1. The Final Map for Townhomes at Ruby View has been presented before expiration of the
subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation
Components of the Master Plan.

4. The proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive).

5. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City code.

6. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of
City code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City code.

8. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans which, having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City code, have been approved by City staff.

9. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City code.

Page 6ol 7



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

10. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as

stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
code.

11. The proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-

2-17 of City code.

12, The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally appreved with the following conditions:

1.

The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code. In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

. The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30

days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

The Final Map for Townhomes at Ruby View is approved for 10 townhouse lots and 1
common lot.

The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

Site disturbance shall not commence prior to approval of the project’s construction plans
by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works. All right-of-way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

Page 7 of 7



{

City of Elko — Development Department
1755 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
" Telephone: 775.777.7210
Facsimile: 775.777.7219

¥ x  * —

March 3, 2020

Carter Engineering, LLC
Attn: Lana Carter

P.O. Box 794

Eiko, NV 89803

Re: Townhomes at Ruby View — Complete Submittal (Final Map 1-20)
Dear Ms. Carter;

The City of Elko has reviewed your Final Map application materials for the Townhomes at Ruby View
{submitted February 27, 2020) and has found them to be complete. We will now begin processing your
application by transmitting the materials to other City departments for their review. You may receive
further comments or corrections as these reviews progress.

i will keep you updated on the status of your application, but please feel free to contact me at {775) 777-
7217 if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

M f'c@fuéb

Michele Rambo, AICP
Development Manager
mrambo@elkocitynv.gov

Cc: High Desert Engineering, LLC
Attn: Bob Morley
640 Ydaho Street
Elko, NV 89801

City of Elko - File



City of Elko ~ Development Department
1755 College Avenue
Elko, NV 89801
* Telephone: 775.777.7210
Facsimile: 775.777.7219

¥ g O —

January 2, 2020

Carter Engineering, LLC
Attn: Lana Carter

P.0. Box 794

Elko, NV 89803

Re: Townhomes at Ruby View — Incomplete Submittal (Final Map 1-20)
Dear Ms. Carter:

The City of Elko has reviewed your Final Map application materials for the Townhomes at Ruby View
(submitted February 25, 2020) and has found it to be incomplete. Please have the surveyor revise the
Final Map to include the information listed below.

1. The subdivision tied to a section corner.
2. Label the western property line as City Limits.

Please resubmit the revised Final Map by March 9, 2020 to ensure sufficient time for other departments
to review and comment prior to the April 7, 2020 Ptanning Commission meeting. Please include in your
resubmittal a new PDF copy of the revised Final Map. As outlined in Section 3-3-5(C}{4), these revisions
must be received within 90-days of the ariginal filing date {February 25, 2020}, or the submittal will
automatically expire.

Piease contact me at {775) 777-7217 if you have any questions.

Sincerely,

M a'c@uéb

Michele Rambo, AICP
Development Manager
mrambo@elkocitynv.gov

cC High Desert Engineering, LLC
Attn: Bob Marley
640 ldaho Street
Elko, NV 89801

City of Elko — File



Carter Engmeermg, LLC

Civil Engineering
P. O. Box 794

Elko, Nevada 89803
775-397-2531

Transmittal Letter

RECEIVED
FEB 2 5 2020

Date: February 25, 2020

To: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
City of Elko
1751 College Avenue
Elko, Nevada 89801

From: Lana L. Carter, P.E.
Carter Engineering, LLC

Regarding: The Town Homes at Ruby View - Final Map Submittal
Description of Attachments:

Application

Fee (Check 1596 - $1,025.00)

Lot Closure Calculations

Wall Calculations

Hydrology Study

Engineer’s Estimate

Soils Report

3 Copies of the Final Map (24"x36"}

3 Sets of the Construction Plans (24”x36")

10 1 Set of the Final Map and Construction Plans (8.5”x11”)
11.PDF copy of the entire submittal on a jump drive.

WERENFUHAWN=

Remarks:
Hello Cathy,

Please accept the attached submittal for The Town Homes at Ruby View. It is my
understanding that the State submittal will be made after Planning Commission
approval and that it is desired to wait until then to prepare the State materials and
fees allowing any changes due to the City's review process to be included within the
State submittal package. We reciate everyone’s help throughout this process.

Thanks - Lana L Carter

Cc: Wade and Laura Kelly, Kelly Builders, LLC



+ .
{ i

CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT
1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 7T77-7160 * (775) 777-7219 fax

*
x
*

*

APPLICATION FOR FINAL PLAT APPROVAL

MAILING ADDRESS:]209 Raptor Court, Elko Nevada 89801
PHONE NO (Home)[_ |(Business)775-777-3217 L
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (If different);

(Property owner consent in writing must be provided)
MAILING ADDRESS: ]

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED h_if necess s
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO,:|001-530—026 Addresg1 553 Indian View Haights Drive

Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision |

Or Parcel(s) & File No. |Parcei 1 of file No. 707194

PROJECT DESCRIPTION OR PURPOSE: {10 lot single family residential townhome developement with

Ione remainder parcel as the common area .
APPLICANT’'S REPRESENTATIVE OR ENGINEER: |Lana L. Carter, P.E., Carter Engineering LLC

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission (meetings are the 1 Tuesday of
every month), and must include the following:
1. One .pdf of the entire application, and ten (10) 24" x 36" copies of the final plat folded to
a size not to exceed 9"x12" provided by a properly licensed surveyor, as well as one (1)
set of reproducible plans 8 %" x 11" in size and any required supporting data, prepared in
accordance with Section 3-3-8 of Elko City Code (see attached checklist).
2. Pre-Submission Requirements:
a. The final plat shall meet all requirements of the zoning district in which located,
and any necessary zoning amendment shall have been adopted by the Elko City
Council prior to filing of the final plat.
b. The final plat shall conform closely to the approved preliminary plat and be
prepared in accordance with the provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance.
¢. The final plat submittal shall include a letter signifying approval of utility easements
by all public utilities involved, and shatll be so indicated by an affidavit on the map.
d. A complete set of construction plans for all public improvements associated with
the final plat shall have been approved or substantially approved by the City
Engineer.

Fee: $750.00 + $25.00 per lot including remainder parcels; non-refundable.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support the request. .

Revised 1/24/18 CEB 2§ 2020 Page 1



l {

Final Plat Checklist as per Elko City Code 3-3-8

Identification Data

v Subdivision Name
v Location and Section, Township and Range
{ Name, address and phone number of subdivider
™ Name, address and phone number of engineer/surveyor
v o scale, North Point and Date of Preparation
L Location maps
Survey Data (Required)
[ Boundaries of the Tract fully balanced and closed
e } Any exception within the piat boundaries
P The subdivision is to be tied to a section corner
N ] FF Location and description of all physical encroachments
Descriptive Data
v Street Layout, location, widths, easements
M l_ ” All drainageways, designated as such
L All utility and public service easements
L Location and dimensions of all lots, parcels
7 / Resitlential Lots shall be numbered consecutively
[ All sites to be dedicated to the public and proposed use
el Location of ail adjoining subdivisions with name date, book and page
(e Any private deed restrictions to be imposed upon the plat

Dedication and AcknowlechLment

Statement of dedication for items to be dedicated

W

Execution of dedication ackowledged by a notary public

Addition

)

1 Informat

jon

s

Street CL, and Monuments identified

N ] )j _ Street CL and width shown on map

v P Location of mounuments used to determine boudaries

v Each city boundary line crossing or adjoing the subdivision
[ Section lines crossing the subdivision boundaries

City Engineer to Check

v Closure report for each of the lots

w Civil Improvement plans

- Estimate of quantities raquired to complete the improvements

Required Certifications

'/,_ All parties having record title in the land to be subdivided
o Offering for dedication
[ _ |Clerk of each approving governing body
L~ |Easements
el Surveyor's Certificate
[ City Engineer
v State Health division
[ State Engineer
U/, Division of Water Resources
— City Council

Revised 1/24/18

Page 2



By My Signature betow:

I consent to having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property for the sole purpose of
inspection of said property as part of this application process.

O object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of

this application. (Your objection will not affect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Councii.}

ﬁ | acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

I acknowiedge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

ﬂ | acknowledge that, if approved, | must provide an AutoCAD file containing the final

subdivision layout on NAD 83 NV East Zone Coordinate System to the City Engineering
Department when requesting final map signatures for recording.

| have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Applicant / Agent U)A De Kelly
(Pleage print or type)

Mailing Address _ 209 RAPToE T
Street Address or P.O. Box

Elko v 555/

City, State, Zip Code
Phone Number 775 ~73Y -%¥23%
Email address: K??//r y 60//%5(5@ Jorir e 2 757 s #TET

SIGNATURE: W

00
FOR OFFICE USEONLY |10 W ¥ Comemon i) %25 195

+ 156.00
File No.: _| - 20 _Date Fited: _2/25/20 Fee Paid: #

$7575.90

Revised 1/24/18 Page 3
























] - Tre
i o et e
i _J Oy -
1 Prany coigen)
] v Dt 1Y = LA B
1 "T [»—--—...n.—.
THUET BLOCK BEARING RRLs (30 P12 i_‘ d
’rl’ et Tre wr e e | Cryee ww —— O S I RO O
gy | W | B lur Poss Tra y — AIF EO v waoa
ARt e ho W
] 1 v ] ] ] o -t T hiked
o v ] ) v v Py I LN et o
i S N 0 ¥ v - by iErvye Beay
H e s n : v . TR
] - ) N - u,
w) _n - i - " “ 4 5
1 )
L add B )
[215M) ~— ~
-
!4 _—
1 Y
L)
i RENE s
- * * s T -n-r-nl-x-namlrn—ﬂmn!'n;l R w CAP a Dese) Wil
Ay o 1 Anapegl (rmec L e Memed AT PR A . A CrmmTT S [ Ot
Mt i o e Tt L TR T S e A= Ay Ay a by, W GRS
s v
e e omiot e e 4 e P et Rt 4 it s e
- - . -
-y b o+ wwVtRow 4t 8 DT F Dab seul dnk st acded s e ra e m Aduks Pk 1Y
B A g s o fave W8 e 1 93 prriers o T bl [t
e e e ! e g KapecP

'y s sl iy o e e
Meah e b e el Lgen Pk e el e taiedegn
it b mryean i B Lol

T st e e e gt s S

G Jembs e Fu of g b b bt 3 Lnorem

s'ramn-nms.m.
ury

TAR

HOER

B0 e 2O7T - g an:
admuy @ W

Al R Bl SO SRS A
P e ok F e B R L

| Euwenan [P D IAM AR e )M L) ) AT e W e

PO ey e S ST ANt ol xSy bt RETL (RO rer LY &
i CACITI, i o L] TR 2| FOR B O g

WONER:

3 TRE el Tl sk PLACKE & weuan o L stab? cor am e et
PST mai M MDA RLKES | mARAN O W AT FOF CHE WO FaF) Bamd
A Buss § ) e A AP

L VO T MDY A ST e AT R mal
£ AL I Pt O Y ey v g 21}
L TR $Y ma by ro,eareg CRatR

U AL ST TTRAE Puicl B & SAM TR [P

WATER SCMWCE COMMECTION

Wy ¥
T TO 8 METER 5ET ()

YALVE AND BOX . B iy ey A i
-T% b w

CROG S ey Dlakie T drlt

ot o

L3

HTORANT POIT LOCA TN

caky F bacery

e tan

1§ pmar
1y

| v

LTt

Lel ]

TRENCH DETAL

e L T
e L LR

s
S

| Tl B AADE 4F M LBCA MO D8 PelBE Bra (v WA ACTid
-y

OULLARD JGUARD POXT) FOR
FIRL HYDRANT PO TEC PON

T

Of sCPRr TI0M

DATE

v

ineering, LLC
nginsening !Q
Q. o 7

Carlar E;
Civil E

o Nevads 2003
Ta-3gr. 2431

I,_

KELLY BUILDERS, LLC
THE TOWN HOMES at RUBY VIEW
WATER DETAILS
ELKO. NEVADA













Agenda ltem I1. B.

wokR W

10.
I1.
12.
13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration and possible approval of Final Map No. 2-20, filed by
Koinonia Development, LP, for the development of a subdivision entitled Mountain
View Townhomes Unit 1 involving the proposed division of approximately 3.27
acres of property into 12 townhouse lots for residential development, 1 common iot,
and 1 remainder parcel for future development within the CT (Commercial
Transitional) Zoning District, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020
Agenda Category: SUBDIVISION
Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: The subject property is located on the south side of N 5t
Street at the intersection of Mary Way. (APN (01-610-096, (01-610-097, (01-619-
098, 001-610-099, and a portion of 001-610-075). The Planning Commission
considered this item on May 5, 2020 and took action to forward a recommendation
to conditionally appreve Final Map 2-20. MR

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Maps, Approved Construction Plans, P.C. Action
Report, Staff Report, and related correspondence.

Recommended Motion: Conditionally approve Final Map 2-20 for the Mountain
Yiew Townhomes Unit 1 subdivision subject to the findings and conditions as
recommended by the Planning Commission,

Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Commission
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: Koinonia Development, LP
Attn: John Smales
207 Brookwood Drive
Elko, NV 89801

johnskoinonia (o gmail.com

High Desert Engineering, LL.C
Attn: Tom Ballew
tchallew @frontiernet.net

Created on 05/04/202¢ Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1




CITY OF ELKO Website: www.elkocity.com

’ P|an ning Depa rtm ent Email; planning@elkocitynv.gov

1751 College Avenue - Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 777-7160 - Fax (775) 777-7219

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPORT
Regular Meeting of May 5, 2020

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning
Commission on May 5, 2020 pursuant to City Code Sections 3-3-7 (G)3:

Final Map No. 2-20, filed by Koinonia Development, LP, for the development of a
subdivision entitied Mountain View Townhomes — Unit 1 involving the proposed division of
approximately 1.00 acres of property into 12 townhouse lots for residential development and
1 common lot approximately 26,784 sq. ft. in area and 1 remainder parcel approximately 2.38
acres in size, within the CT (Commercial Transitional) Zoning District, and matters related
thereto.

Subject property is located on the south side of N 5th Street at the intersection of Mary Way.
(APN 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-099, and a portion of 001-610-075)

NOW THEREFORE, upon review and consideration of the application, supporting data, public
input and testimony, the Planning Commission recommended that the City Council accept, on
behalf of the public, the parcels of land offered for dedication for public use in conformity with
the terms of the offer of dedication; that the final map substantially complies with the tentative
map; that the City Council approve the agreement to install improvements in accordance with the
approved construction plans that satisfies the requirements of Title 2, Chapter 3, and
conditionally approve Final Map 2-20 with conditions listed in the Staff Report dated April 20,
2020, listed as follows:

1. The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code. In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.
The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30
days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

The Final Map for Mountain View Townhomes — Unit 1 is approved for 12 townhouse
lots and 1 common lot.

The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

Site disturbance shall not commence prior to approval of the project’s construction plans
by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified

Voo N v kW



engineer and engineening firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works. All right-of-way and utility improvements are to be
certified bv the Engineer of Record for the project.

10. Fire Department Tumaround to be constructed to 2018 IFC Appendix D 102.1 Access
and Loading...approved driving surface capable of supporting the imposed load of fire

apparatus weighing up to 75,000 pounds.
11. Fire department turn around be labeled as “FIRE DEPARTMENT TURN-AROUND
ACCESS EASEMENT™.

The Planning Commission’s findings to support its recommendation are the Final Map for
Mountain View Townhomes — Unit 1 has been presented before expiration of the subdivision
proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and City Code. The Final Map is in
conformance with the Tentative Map. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land
Use and Transportation Components of the Master Plan. The proposed development conforms
with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive). The Subdivider shall be responsible for all
required improvements in conformance with Section 3-3-17 of City Code. The Subdivider has
submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of City Code. The Subdivider
has submitted plans to the City and State agencies for review to receive all required permits in
accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City Code. The Subdivider has submitted
construction plans which, having been found to be in conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City
Code, have been approved by City Staff. The Subdivider will be required to enter into a
Performance Agreement to conform to Section 3-3-21 of City Code. The Subdivider will be
required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as stipulated in the Performance
Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City Code. The proposed development
conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E)}, 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 of City Code. The proposed
development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City Code.

Attest:

CC: Applicant
Michele Rambo, Development Manager (email)
Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk



STAFF COMMENT FLOW SHEET
PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA DATE: __5/5

**Do not use pencil or red pen, they do not reproduce**

tite:_Tinal Wap AJo.2-20_ Wonntain View Tousn Hmes - Uniz1
Applicant(s): _Yinsnia Developrmunt, 17

Site Location: 8 Sldt [\_L 5' S} QCrasS &Am Wlam Mbd

J 7
Current Zoning: Z Date Received: ‘SZ'[ 7 Date Public Natice: A}/A

COMMENT: _This is 4or Hae division of dacre intp 12.10ts ond o
J_Vnmaxmm_ﬂuiﬁﬁla%ﬁ_n_ana_andixmmmw__l@ams

in Size.

**If additional space is needed please provide a separate memorandum**

Assistant City Manager: Date: cj/ 2 l/20

1
st Ao as /Aese-.-&'a’ ZJLS/%

L

Sk

Initial
City Manager: Date: "{/.Zl/ 20
Nﬂ C.o2 ot _/Ca Hearint s
(o
f

Initial






Final Map 15-19

Tower Hiil Phase 3
in this report.
PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-

099, and a portion of 001-610-075
PARCEL SIZE: 3.24 Acres — Approved Tentative Map

1.00 Acre — Proposed Unit |
EXISTING ZONING: (CT) Commercial Transitional
MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: (MU-NGHBHD) Mixed-Use Neighborhood
EXISTING LAND USE: Vacant
BACKGROUND:

1.

The Final Map for Mountain View Townhomes-Unit 1has been presented before
expiration of the subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1)(a)(2) and
City code.

The Planning Commission reviewed and recommended a conditional approval to the City
Council on the Mountain View Townhomes Tentative Map.

. The City Council conditionally approved the Mountain View Townhomes Tentative

Map.
The subdivision is located on APNs 001-610-096, 001-610-097, 001-610-098, 001-610-
099, and a portion of 001-610-075 (being purchased from the City of Elko).

. The proposed overall subdivision consists of 44 residential lots and 1 common lot.

5
6. The total subdivided area is approximately 3.24 acres.
7.
8
9.
1

The proposed density is 13.58 units per acre.

. No public streets are being dedicated as part of this subdivision.

Drainage and utlhty easements are provided along all lot lines.

0. The property is located on the south side of N 5" Street at the intersection of Mary Way.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is surrounded by:

Northwest: Commercial (C) / Developed

Northeast: Residential Mobile Home (RMH) / Developed
Southwest: Public/Quasi-Public (PQP) / Developed
Southeast: Commercial (C) / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is an undeveloped commercial parcel.

The site abuts previous residential development to the northeast, commercial buildings on
the northwest and southeast, and Mountain View Park on the southwest.

The parcel is generally flat, but has some significant slope in the southwest corner, which

Page 2 of 8



Final Map [5-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

has been incorporated into the tentative map design.
e The property will be accessed by two driveways off of N 5™ Street.

APPLICABLE MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODE SECTIONS:

City of Elko Master Plan — Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

City of Elko Wellhead Protection Plan

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-3-7 Final Map State (Stage 111)

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-3-8 Content and Format of Final Map Submittal

City of Elko Zoning - Section 3-3-9 to 3-3-16 (Inclusive) Subdivision Design Standards
City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-3-17 to 3-3-22 (Inclusive) Public Improvements/
Guarantees

City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-2-17 Zoning Code
Standards

o City of Elko Zoning — Section 3-8 Flood Plain Management

MASTER PLAN - Land use:

Conformance with the Land Use component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review and
approval of the Tentative Map. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use Component of the
Master Plan.

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

Conformance with the Transportation component of the Master Plan was evaluated with review
and approval of the Tentative Map. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

Therefore, the proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Transportation Component of the
Master Plan.

ELKO REDEVELOPMENT PLAN:

The property is not located within the redevelopment area.

ELKO WELLHEAD PROTECTION PLAN:

The property is located within the 20-year capture zone for several City of Elko wells.
Development of the site is required to be connected to a programmed sewer system and all street
drainage will be directed to a storm sewer system.

As the project is designed, it does not present a hazard to City wells.

SECTION 3-3-7 FINAL MAP STAGE (STAGE 1ID):

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(1) — The Final Map is in conformance with the zone
requirements.

Pre-submission Requirements (C)(2) —~ The proposed Final Map conforms to the Tentative
Map.

Poaged of B



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

SECTION 3-3-8 CONTENT AND FORMAT OF FINAL MAP SUBMITTAL:

A. Form and Content - The Final Map conforms to the required size specifications and
provides the appropriate affidavits and certifications.
B. Identification Data
1. The Final Map identifies the subdivision and provides its location by section,
township, range, and county.
2. The Final Map was prepared by a properly licensed surveyor.
3. The Final Map provides a scale, north arrow, and date of preparation.
C. Survey Data
1. The boundaries of the subdivision are fully balanced and closed.
2. Any exceptions are noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map is tied to a section corner.
4. The location and description of any physical encroachments upon the boundary of
the subdivision are noted on the Final Map.
D. Descriptive Data
1. The name, right-of-way lines, courses, lengths, and widths of all streets and
easements are noted on the Final Map.
2. All drainage ways are noted on the Final Map.
3. Al utility and public service easements are noted on the Final Map.
4. The location and dimensions of all lots, parcels, and exceptions are shown on the
Final Map.
5. All residential lots are numbered consecutively on the Final Map.
6. There are no sites dedicated to the public shown on the Final Map.
7. The locations of adjoining subdivisions are noted on the Final Map with required
informatton.
8. There are no deed restrictions proposed.
E. Dedication and Acknowledgment
I. The owner’s certificate has the required dedication information for all easements
and right-of-ways.
2. The execution of dedication is acknowledged with space to be certified by a
notary public.
F. Additional Information
1. All centerline monuments for streets are noted as being set on the Final Map.
2. The centerline and width of each right-of-way is noted on the Final Map.
3. The Final Map indicates the location of monuments that will be set to determine
the boundaries of the subdivision.
4. The length and bearing of each lot line is identified on the Final Map.
5. The Final Map is not located adjacent to a city boundary.
6. The Final Map identifies the location of the section lines nearest the property.
G. City to Check
l. Closure calculations have been provided. Civil improvement plans have been
approved. Drainage plans have been approved. An engineer’s estimate has been
provided.
2. The lot closures are within the required tolerances.
H. Required Certifications
I. The Owner’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.

Paged of 8



Final Map 15-19
Tawer Hill Phase 3

2. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all right-of-ways shown on the Final
Map.

3. A Clerk Certificate is shown on the Final Map, certifying the signature of the City
Council.

4. The Owner’s Certificate offers for dedication all easements shown on the Final
Map.

5. A Surveyor's Certificate is shown on the Final Map and provides the required
language.

6. The City Engineer’s Certificate is shown on the Final Map.

7. A certificate from the Nevada Division of Environmental Protection is provided
with the required language.

8. The engineer of record has submitted the Tentative Map and construction plans to
the state, but no written approval has been received,

9. A certificate from the Division of Water Resources is provided on the Final Map
with the required language.

10. The construction plans identify the required water meters for the subdivision.

SECTION 3-3-9 THROUGH 3-3-16 (INCLUSIVE)

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-3-17 RESPONSIBILITY FOR PUBLIC IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with this
section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-18 CONSTRUCTION PLANS

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all
required permits in accordance with this section of City code. The plans have been approved by
City staff.

SECTION 3-3-19 CONSTRUCTION AND INSPECTION

The subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive all permits
in accordance with this section of City code.

SECTION 3-3-20 REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider has submitted civil improvement plans which are in conformance with this
section of City code.

Civil improvements include curb, gutter, and sidewalk as well as paving and utilities within the
N 5thn Street right-of-way.

Page 5ol 8



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

SECTION 3-3-21 AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS

The subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to this section
of City code.

SECTION 3-3-22 PERFORMANCE AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTEES

The subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as
stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with this section of City code.

SECTIONS 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), AND 3-2-17

The proposed subdivision was evaluated for conformance to the referenced sections of code
during the Tentative Map process.

The proposed development conforms with these sections of City code.

SECTION 3-8 FLOODPLAIN MANAGEMENT:

This parcel is not designated in a Special Flood Hazard Area (SFHA).
FINDINGS
1. The Final Map for Mountain View Townhomes — Unit 1 has been presented before
expiration of the subdivision proceedings in accordance with NRS 278.360(1){a){2) and
City code.

2. The Final Map is in conformance with the Tentative Map.

3. The proposed subdivision is in conformance with the Land Use and Transportation
Components of the Master Plan.

4. The proposed development conforms with Sections 3-3-9 through 3-3-16 (inclusive).

5. The Subdivider shall be responsible for all required improvements in conformance with
Section 3-3-17 of City code.

6. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans in conformance with Section 3-3-18 of
City code.

7. The Subdivider has submitted plans to the city and state agencies for review to receive ali
required permits in accordance with the requirements of Section 3-3-19 of City code.

8. The Subdivider has submitted construction plans which, having been found to be in
conformance with Section 3-3-20 of City code, have been approved by City staff.

Page 6 of 8



0.

Final Map 15-19
Tower Hilt Phase 3

The Subdivider will be required to enter into a Performance Agreement to conform to
Section 3-3-21 of City code.

10. The Subdivider will be required to provide a Performance and Maintenance Guarantee as

stipulated in the Performance Agreement in conformance with Section 3-3-22 of City
code.

11. The proposed development conforms to Sections 3-2-3, 3-2-4, 3-2-5(E), 3-2-5(G), and 3-

2-17 of City code.

12. The proposed development is in conformance with Section 3-8 of City code.

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends this item be conditionally approved with the following conditions:

L.

The Developer shall execute a Performance and Maintenance Agreement in accordance
with Section 3-3-21 of City code. The Performance Agreement shall be secured in
accordance with Section 3-3-22 of City code. In conformance with Section 3-3-21 of
City code, the public improvements shall be completed within a time of no later than two
(2) years of the date of Final Map approval by the City Council unless extended as
stipulated in City code.

The Performance and Maintenance Agreement shall be approved by the City Council.

. The Developer shall enter into the Performance and Maintenance Agreement within 30

days of approval of the Final Map by the City Council.

The Final Map for Mountain View Townhomes - Unit [ is approved for 12 townhouse
lots and 1 common lot.

The Utility Department will issue a Will Serve Letter for the subdivision.

Site disturbance shall not commence prior to approval of the project’s construction plans
by the Nevada Department of Environmental Protection.

Construction shall not commence prior to Final Map approval by the City Council and
issuance of a will-serve letter by the City of Elko.

Conformance with the conditions of approval of the Tentative Map is required.

The Owner/Developer is to provide the appropriate contact information for the qualified
engineer and engineering firm contracted to oversee the project along with the required
inspection and testing necessary to produce an As-Built for submittal to the City of Elko.
The Engineer of Record is to ensure all materials meet the latest edition of the Standard
Specifications for Public Works. All right-of-way and utility improvements are to be
certified by the Engineer of Record for the project.

Page 7 of 8



Final Map 15-19
Tower Hill Phase 3

10. Fire Department Turnaround to be constructed to 2018 IFC Appendix D 102,1 Access
and Loading...approved driving surface capable of supporting the imposed load of fire
apparatus weighing up to 75,000 pounds.

11. Fire department tum around be labeled as “FIRE DEPARTMENT TURN-ARQUND
ACCESS EASEMENT".

Page B of 8



CITY OF ELKO PLANNING DEPARTMENT

1751 College Avenue * Elko * Nevada * 89801
(775) 777-7160 * (775) 777-7119 fax

APPLICATION FOR FINAL PLAT APPROVAL

APPLICANT(s): Koinonia Development, LP
MAILING ADDRESS: 207 Brookwood Drive, Elko, NV 89801
PHONE NO (Home) (Business)_{775) 303-8492 _
NAME OF PROPERTY OWNER (if different): same

(Property owner consent in wnting must be provided})
MAILING ADDRESS: same
LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND LOCATION OF PROPERTY INVOLVED (Attach if necessary):
ASSESSOR'S PARCEL NO.:___001-610-096, 097, 098 & 099 Address___N/A
Lot(s), Block(s), &Subdivision
Or Parcel(s) & File No. __ Adjusted Parcels 1,2 & 3, File 765673 & Parcel 4, File 416535
PROJECT DESCRIPTION OR PURPOSE: __12 Lot Single Family Residential Subdivision

APPLICANT'S REPRESENTATIVE OR ENGINEER: High Desert Engineering, LLC

FILING REQUIREMENTS:

Complete Application Form: In order to begin processing the application, an application form
must be complete and signed. Complete applications are due at least 21 days prior to the next
scheduled meeting of the Elko City Planning Commission {meetings are the 15! Tuesday of
every month), and must include the following:

1. One .pdf of the entire application, and ten (10) 24" x 36" copies of the final plat folded to a
size not to exceed 9°x12" provided by a properly licensed surveyor, as well as one (1) set
of reproducible plans 8 2" x 11”7 in size and any required supporting data, prepared in
accordance with Section 3-3-8 of Etko City Code (see attached checklist).

2. Pre-Submission Requirements:

a. The final plat shall meet all requirements of the zoning district in which located,
and any necessary zoning amendment shall have been adopted by the Elko City
Council prior to fiting of the final plat.

. The final plat shall conform closely to the approved preliminary plat and be
prepared in accordance with the provisions of the City Subdivision Ordinance.

. The final plat submittal shall include a letter signifying approval of utility easements
by all public utilities involved, and shall be so indicated by an affidavit on the map.

d. A complete set of construction plans for all public improvements associated with
the final plat shall have been approved or substantially approved by the City
Engineer.

Fee: $750.00 + $25.00 per lot including remainder parcels; non-refundable.

Other Information: The applicant is encouraged to submit other information and documentation
to support the request. E(_.:,EIVED

———

Revised 1/24/18 MAR 17 2020 Page 1




Final Plat Checklist 3-3-8

Identification Data
Subdivision Name

Location and Section, Township and Range

Name, address and phone number of subdivider

Name, address and phone number of engineer/surveyor
Scale, North Point and Date of Preparation

Location maps

Survey Data (Required)

SOV

— Boundaries of the Tract fully balanced and closed

= Any exception within the plat boundaries

P The subdivision is to be tied to a section corner

- Location and description of all physical encroachments
Descriptive Data

o Street Layout, location, widths, easements

L All drainageways, designated as such
o All utility and public service easements
e Location and dimensions of all lots, parcels
e Residential Lots shall be numbered consecutively
e
"

All sites to be dedicated to the public and proposed use
Location of all adjoining subdivisions with name date, book and page
Any private deed restrictions to be imposed upon the plat

Dedication and Acknowledg_ment

[ Statement of dedication for items to be dedicated

e Execution of dedication ackowledged by a notary public
Additional Information

s Street CL, and Monuments identified

Street CL and width shown on map

Ll Location of mounuments used to determine boudaries

o Each city boundary line crossing or adjoing the subdivision
e Section lines crossing the subdivision boundaries

City Engineer to Check
Ll Closure report for each of the lots
[ Civil improvement plans
=~ Estimate of quantities required to complete the improvements
Required Certifications
All parties having record title in the land to be subdivided
Offering for dedication
Clerk of each approving governing body
Easements
Surveyor's Certificate
City Engineer
State Health division
State Engineer
Division of Water Resources
City Council

\‘\\\\‘\\\\

Revised 1/24/18 Page 2






)

Thomas C. Ballew, P.E., P.L.S. HIGH & Consulting Civil Engineering
Robert E. Morley, P.L.S. DESERT Land Surveying
Duane V. Merrill, P.L.S. ENGINEERING Water Rights

LLC \a : —

March 17, 2020 RECEIVED
MAR 1 7 2020

Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
City of Elko

1751 College Avenue

Eiko, NV 89801

Re: Mountain View Town Homes
Unit )

Dear Cathy,
Enclosed please find the following items regarding the above referenced project:

Application for Final Plat Approval.

Ten (10) 24”x36” copies of the proposed Final Plat Map.

Two (2) 24"x36” copies of the Site Construction Drawings

One (1) copy of the subdivision lot calculations.

One (1) copy of the Public Improvement Estimate

Check in the amount of $1,075.00 for the Final Plat review fee (payee City of Elko).

Pdf copics of the documents listed above will be transmittcd to you.
Please feel free to contact me if you have any questions regarding this matter.

Sincerely,
HIGH DESERT Engineering, LLC

‘homas C. Ballew, PE., P.L.S.
enclosures

cc Luke Fitzgerald, Koinonia Development, LP

640 ldaho Street  *  Elko, Nevada, 89801 * (775) 738-4053 * Fax (775) 753-7693
hdeng@frontiernet.net





















—_—

—
—m T um oYLty prr=rre] art “—TIoX W Dac o (5

S L R

s cuosr | SYYIIQ XOF UVH ¥ FUNSOTING HSVHl [T mer] mmw roum am
LY A gpRE LONLRYH] NOLLOAHEISNAD LT =T i -
——  semm " jt— LR
i MIFNAN JING SYMON NQl ATIA NTYINNON o [
ity -t “Fre JusrraaeT Swirdiined

i Eﬁ :

E

E— :
'y
; .i 1
] ¥
I I
| 1!
L § :i 5 .'{5!!
: I H.;-i
HEE it
| - %§s§n
148}
1 s s %Eigi
l e | SHE
El . w

-
i
by o i
HEE A BT 'iE ig
- KEE [ | ! ! %E%
] Wil 7 > 7 B
: il Wy
{ : — !E ok
- § iy :
¥ P E’_a
§ i E;EE ;
Bie= = an

X gt
= racery
o
e

A

-

B b e P 1 P e M T et emg i 1+ e By LT AEA



K A e S ]
=12

PG BT R PR AOAR: .
e TR W T AR R o )

il FCTAIN TaTY
Lomus chvm ore g

TR0 (R}

T E

—_—

TIEST W Oad

SR M A el Bwuis D b2 Y B ke i ORI T
i T agpint oy vy St v}

O S FEI-rewhy aTiTOMN / aifOns W Tw e aydm W p |

T

Tl s D L Al —

it 217

I....
Lo, e

e | P
oE T I R T
Ry et o

]
e el 4 N
i\ le.l.i

)

ial A

SONiEYH( NDILWINISNOD ALl

T ¥TERAN LN ~ STROH NAGL ATIA NITINNON

vty
SILON ALMILLT ¥ STVLIQ NILSAS MIIVA

e

Y SEEAN AR S, F TR B A A i M Th LSO ST G T o

SEPN G LI M) S/ R P e e

PR A XM P A ey Saepreed P G M AU RISy AW T 31 dve LIRS e CEAST MU Ty
Pt pag s Sk iy Tl e S
-

W A TENA NP BT AT BT P TR T S MEAR? 1Y il

SRR AL SRR, WiE VI Jre P Lee PrIl SEREVRS M A LICMENIUS S LI TGS ARL M B SO UG R rE

LY BTSSP St LA L P S i ol B W § I VUG o) LI Ly
RS T W AR ELITY A T TE ¢ wl Bt Tl O K b B DT TYRDIT AR Lo RERIN 11 Mkt DN T K W5 M P e AL e Y W

T MR TYIT ST 8 DeS BEIR B SR 5 OW S ) BTV G L b 8 MK %
il Temail LTS (a3 wmerv) SiFB M Tt By 64 A fla) XE b Mlint 1 J0 TR (Dt KBKE iy TY B

AF ELDREST

TR A arnme

L

L&'y

— N ue

Ty ok foer s wy7l] M EFPeii M Vil deeh glom T
ST I Vg i By bl W] el w1

Ay el Ny CTL W A e I b ek v i ol Lewy ah
178 DL SerSmat ST 8 L0 AR DT o I v A ARy Ry B LA @ T

A rPma AT [TV e ey W Beed Sy BN LT > T
TRy i Waw YLhig GaW ar 40 Sk oL Ded FRE P T Lsvems T gave e g

-
-
At Sotiud ekt it (Pl 5 8 [yt Wit & ] B POt Livveln Sk 8 T4
n
L]

L Y P N WL N e AETAA mrme gty

Thon W b D QW k) T agamke § SN Facal) B iy solifeovdid dsfiun B0 03 b bm 4
VTR 8 LI D A D LN BERAOY T SATREAY) B O A A R 48 IOE Y TV e SRS PBET M & ST W 3

EDorarrD g Meweck Ao S 200 B bevere SUEL B0 A YEORT MR W 5is e
AN Pnpalale & AT S P T S GRS i D A WO g RN WD § S VT P Gt Sy (MG m) Lo ) WS A LA Tt F

T LGRS DL e R W sas Jac

oy s
ain] 3 we Eswivacor w dBLE BRI & TS GSALS BEEF o LAWDrD Reskcr LS S A ov DD 8 UG B 1P ERSOOY 5 STaarg W is WRAED SUE RASS 7

Ly O RS — e ol

O SN my S Ayl A e g R} ok o Lok Gl ooyl WAL e ar v Bl iy ey v e m) T BB Theg (RSl s T D A0 e Y

LT

Lo T

TROOYR ONY MO YAVICT HOM I

FURR Er TIIR EPT Sa N MDA Twel Bigmrid) RACMRE TR T
TPLAE AT AR LR WL LRRpOE ¢ ERCHN

IR I 2 e DO 5 AT 3 Ty Wbk b

P el YO B KT [ N 0y LAY DTN ¢ 8 N il
o PRy L G oy b Rmky P LB T TReOE T

Tl e il melry S Mugve sammm mme

R L MR AR SR TR ket §

(ot s e epemm iy L T
o 0 o AR 2 Pl B AR ¥ VTV PN P Decliiie

e ]
A EREI 5 PA VI (o I 9P B BT S AT ¥ AR =l &

e TS T o e 3 e
- TEERR 22
T R P B AR TR ¢




0w e RBAIAL BOPETMm r T LM i M ] T - ST 1SR PR Lo @

IMONYIT) IS AWvIsTS

cAZLEAMLE
[4
SATETL N E ML Hwono

lomed  FivATE T¥TY
AkTMIE opMT BP0

RO -d oty

:_m—wr-f.z '
e
F
2
4 3

ors

STVIIA YIS KWYOLS ¥ AUVINVE

Lierya: ary

SONLAYYT NOLLOONISNGD FLS

roYLry

-
Vel TR e W Bt 3 Tt
N e N

i e Sy S vl ThaCrd s T ]

[ e~y Hmargie vyt o=t R

st EBRY 3 TheE e JiS WNE Sha¥ PNSIN Iyeaen LTI ¢

PrEyey—r gt vy e o e B

I WIERAN LN - SINGH NAOL BIFLY NTYINAGR

T palia e LR P Fem? B e B D YV OB AT LATE ekt M T
T S By 4V DAL By AT I TR AR L S
T Cbman id 60 Limile BOT BN i NV ¥ SN U-CkMal B TG LI LU0
1ME EEEO TN lw-(IRY T B TR Lfw S

BN AL Oed SN P MR LA FT I A LEORISPA B LM TR EROM0T ¢

WL Ly P P LI ST e A kT el G
e T e L )
S, TR ¢ R L0 T TS P P PUT— S e ) Torep e T

TSy o 4 o o el Y fpmann §

Y ) el e b Pan) W i (et Ltet

O SOy s Mt RN - FEe— (o N e ¥
TN BOUAM G B TIRG L1 PSSR €
LN S 18 P 4 Y B AV SV JgTIRG T}
T s B ePiars oYY Pl s
kg rnied
AN gl Oty . tear) (a4l v

1 el TOHNA

ey WCRETY o AhDr vy Kipave 5 Maa




Agenda ltem IILA.

I1.

12,

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Performance/Maintenance
Agreement for subdivision improvements associated with the Mountain View Townhomes
Unit 1 subdivision, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020
Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background information: Elko City Cede 3-3-21 requires the subdivider to have executed
and filed an agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision
improvements, including stipulations on the timeframe for when those improvements are to
be completed, and to post a performance guarantec in accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-
22. As part of the conditions of approval for Final Map 2-20, the Planning Commission
recommended that the agreement be approved by the City Council and be entered into by
the developer within 30 days of the City Council’s approval of the Final Map, MR

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Performance/Maintenance Agreement
Recommended Motion: Approve the Performance/Maintenance Agreement for subdivision
improvements associated with the Mountain View Townhomes subdivision and require that
the developer enter into the agreement within 30 days.
Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review: David Stanton, City Attorney
Council Action:
Council Agenda Distribution:  Koinonia Development, LP
207 Brookwood Drive
Elko, NV 89801

elkoluket gmail.com

High Desert Engineering, LLC
640 Idaho Street

Elko, NV 89801

ichallew @frontiernetnil

Created on 05/04/20 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1of 1



AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS
AND PROVIDE MAINTENANCE GUARANTY

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _12th dayof _ May , 2020, by and between
the CITY OF ELKO, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada,
hereinafter referred to as the “City," and Koinonia Development, LP, a Nevada Limited Partnership,
hereinafter referred to as "Developer.”

RECITALS

A. WHEREAS, Developer is subdividing certain property within the City, the subdivision being
generally known as Mountain View Townhomes Unit 1, into twelve (12) separate townhouse
parcels and one (1) common lot by means of a subdivision map, identified by the City as Final
Map No. 2-20;

B. WHEREAS, Elko City Code, Title 3, Chapter 3, requires that a developer of a subdivision {as that
term is used in NRS 278.320(1)) enter into an Agreement to Install Improvements:

C. WHEREAS, the City has approved the Engineer’s Cost Estimate for the required subdivision
improvements (set forth in Exhibit A and made a part hereof) and has determined that the cost
of the required subdivision improvements is expected to be in the amount of Four Hundred
Eighty-Four Thousand, Eleven Dollars ($484,011.00), which amount provides the basis for
calculating the amount of the Maintenance Guaranty;

D. WHEREAS, the Developer intends to complete the required subdivision improvements with its
own resources pursuant to Elko City Code Section 3-3-21{A)(3)(a) and 3-3-22(A)(1), and in
conformity with the construction plans approved by the City (attached as Exhibit B and made a
part hereof) prior to certification of the final map;

E. WHEREAS, Elko City Code 3-3-21(A)(4) requires that all subdivision improvements identified in
the agreement to install improvements shall be completed within a specified period, not to
exceed two (2) years, to the satisfaction of the City;

WHEREAS, the City approved the Final Map on May 12, 2020;

G. WHEREAS, pursuant to Elko City Code Section 3-3-22(B)(3), the Developer shall file with the
Clerk of the City a maintenance guaranty to ensure the maintenance, adequacy and condition of
all improvements required by this Agreement for a period of one (1) year after the subdivision
improvements are accepted by the City. The maintenance guaranty may be in any form
permitted in Section 3-3-22(8)(1) for a performance guaranty and shall be in the amount of
Forty-Eight Thousand, Four Hundred and One Dollars and Ten Cents ($48,401.10) (hereinafter
referred to as the “Maintenance Guaranty”);

H. WHEREAS, in the event the Developer fails to complete all the required subdivision
improvements in accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Developer shall be in
default of this Agreement and the City shall be entitled to pursue all available legal remedies.



1)

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions on the part
of the respective parties to be performed, the parties hereby agree as follows:

REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS, CERTIFICATION, MAINTENANCE GUARANTY, AND ACCEPTANCE AND

CERTIFICATION OF THE FINAL MAP

A,

|@

COMPLETION OF WORK AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTY. Developer agrees to complete
the improvements shown on the construction plans attached as Exhibit B hereto in the
manner set forth in this Agreement and in conformity with Elko City Code 3-3-21(A}(4)
(requiring the improvements to be completed to the satisfaction of the City) (hereinafter
the "Work”) within twenty-four (24) months of the Effective Date, unless otherwise
extended in accordance herewith, and Developer shall pay or cause to be paid all claims for
labor and materials used to perform the Work, During the construction of the subdivision
improvements, the Developer may, at its option, guarantee performance of the remaining
subdivision improvements with a performance guaranty that conforms to ECC Sections 3-3-
21{A)(3)(b} and 3-3-22.

ENGINEER’S ESTIMATE, CERTIFICATION AND SUBMISSION OF WORK.

1) Developer agrees to, at its own expense, contract with a licensed engineer in the State of
Nevada to oversee the construction of the subdivision improvements, oversee ail required
testing and verification of materials to ensure construction of the subdivision improvements
in accordance with all federal, state and local requirements and provide an engineer’s
estimate, which must be approved by the City. The total engineer’s estimate must be an
amount no less than the full cost of the following improvements: {a) improvements required
under Section 3-3-20 of the Elko City Code; (b) improvements shown on the construction
plans prepared and approved in accordance with Section 3-3-18 of the Elko City Code; {c)
the cost of required inspection and testing by a properly licensed engineer to oversee the
quality assurance and quality control necessary to ensure certification for the construction
of the approved construction plans; {d) the cost to replace any existing streets, utilities or
other improvements that are included in the required improvements as shown on the
construction plans; (e) the cost to prepare the as-built drawings and any associated
documents; and (f) incidental expenses associated with the foregoing Work.

2) The Work shall be certified by the Developer’s Engineer {who shall be a registered
engineer, licensed in the State of Nevada) and submitted to the City for possible acceptance
of the Work before the City conducts the subdivision final inspection and no later than
twenty-four (24) months after the Effective Date. Upon certification of the Work, the
Developer's Engineer shall provide the City with a certificate attesting to the adequacy of
the Work and compliance with all requirements set forth in this Agreement, to include,
without limitation, the construction specifications, codes and standards set forth in the
Orange Book.

3) The certification by the Developer’s engineer shall include: {a) the results of all required
testing, presented in an organized manner by material type and category of work; (b)
references to the sections of the Orange Book that correspond to the required testing for
the material type and category of work; (c} the frequency of the required testing; (d) photo



|

D.

documentation for any components of the Work which cannot be certified by testing {i.e.
special construction of utility crossings); and (e} an “as-built” drawing of the Work.

4) The City Council shall not accept the Work without a complete and comprehensive
certification of the Work by the Developer’'s engineer.

MAINTENANCE PERIOD. Notwithstanding the Term of this Agreement, the maintenance
period shall commence on the date the City Council accepts the Work and shall continue
thereafter for a period of twelve [12) months. In satisfaction of its requirement to provide a
Maintenance Guaranty, Developer shall, prior to acceptance of the Work, in conformance
with Elko City Code 3-3-22(B)(3), provide the City with a Maintenance Guaranty in a form
that complies with Elko City Code Section 3-3-22(B) in the amount of Forty-Eight Thousand,
Four Hundred and One Dollars and Ten Cents ($48,401.10), which amount is not less than
ten percent {10%) of the totai cost of the required suhdivision improvements. If
maintenance is required during the maintenance period, the City will provide fifteen (15)
calendar days’ written notice of the required maintenance work to the Developer and the
Developer must thereafter complete the required maintenance work. If the Developer fails
to complete the maintenance work within the fifteen (15) calendar day period, without
limiting any other rights or remedies available, the City may complete or have the
maintenance work completed and use the Maintenance Guaranty to satisfy the costs
thereof. The certification of the Final Map is, without limitation, conditioned upon
Developer providing the Maintenance Guaranty.

CERTIFICATION OF FINAL MAP. The City will not certify the Final Map until:

1) The Agreement has been approved by the City Council in conjunction with Final Map
approval;

2) The Agreement has been fully executed and filed with the City Clerk’s office;

3) The Developer has completed the Work as required under the Agreement, or a
performance guaranty that complies with ECC Sections 3-3-21{A}{3)}(b) and 3-3-22
has been posted with the Elko City Clerk for the remaining Wark;

4) The Developer has filed with the Elko City Clerk the Maintenance Guaranty,
calculated in the manner set forth herein and otherwise meeting the requirements
of this Agreement and the Elko City Code;

5) The City Council has accepted the subdivision improvements, or a performance
guaranty that complies with ECC Sections 3-3-21(A)(3)(b} and 3-3-22 has been
posted with the Elko City Clerk for the remaining Work;

6) The Developer has acquired all other jurat certifications required by the Nevada
Revised Statutes, the Elko City Code and this Agreement; and

7) All other Final Map requirements set forth in the Nevada Revised Statutes and the
Elko City Code have been met.



™

m

|

EFFECTIVE DATE. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be May 12, 2020, which is the
date the City approved the Final Map, and this Agreement shall operate retroactively to that
date, except where otherwise specifically stated herein.

TERM. The Term of this Agreement shall be twenty-four (24) months from the Effective
Date, unless the Work is completed and accepted by the City prior to the expiration of the
foregoing twenty-four {24} month period, in which event the Term shali expire on the date
the Work is accepted by the City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City may, upon a
written request and showing by the Developer of good cause, grant an extension of time to
complete the Work for an additional twelve (12} months thereafter (with a corresponding
extension of the Term); provided, no such extension shall be given unless: (a} the Developer
has satisfactorily performed its duties under this Agreement to date; (b) the Developer has
diligently and in good faith attempted to complete the Work within the aforementioned
twenty-four (24) month period, but has been unable to do so due to events beyond the
Developer’s control; and {c) the Maintenance Guaranty has been provided to the Elko City
Clerk.

DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND CONDITIONS. in addition to any other requirements
contained herein, the Work shall not be accepted by the City unless the Develaoper fully
satisfies the following requirements:

(1) COMPLIANCE WITH CITY CODE. Developer shall perform the Work in a manner
that fully complies with the Elko City Code.

{2) STANDARDS. The Work shall be completed in accordance with the plans,
specifications and conditions approved by the City and in accerdance with
requirements otherwise set forth in this Agreement, to include requirements
incorporated by reference.

(3]_PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE. Prior to the initiation of the construction of
any roadway, drainage, water or sewer improvements included in the Work, the
Developer shall schedule and participate in a preconstruction conference with
Developer’'s contractor(s) and the City Development Manager or the City's
designee(s).

i4)__AS-BUILT PLANS. Developer shall provide complete as-built drawings of all
street, water, sewer and drainage improvements to the City prior to the
subdivision final inspection.

(5) SUBDIVISION CONDITIONS. Developer shall satisfy all subdivision approval
conditions established by or at the direction of the City Council and/or the City

Planning Commission.

(6) ENGINEER'S CERTIFICATE. Before the subdivision final inspection, Developer's
engineer {who shall be a registered engineer, licensed in the State of Nevada)
shall provide the City with a certificate certifying the adequacy of the Work
and compliance with all requirements set forth in this Agreement, to include,
without limitation, City standard construction specifications, codes and
standards.




H. FINAL COMPLETION AND ACCEPTANCE OF WORK. Approval of the final completion and
acceptance of the Work shall be at the discretion of the City. The Work shall not be
accepted unless and until it satisfies the requirements of this Agreement, to include the
conditions set forth in Section 1 {(REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS, CERTIFICATION,
MAINTENANCE GUARANTY, ACCEPTANCE AND CERTIFICATION OF THE FINAL MAP).
Developer shall request that the City inspect the Work no later than thirty (30) days prior to
the end of the Term. The City shall have the authority to suspend the Work, in whole or in
part, for such period as it may deem necessary due to unsuitable weather or other
unfavorable conditions or the failure of Developer to comply with the requirements
contained in this Agreement, to include compliance with the standard construction
specifications of the City.

=

DEFAULT, NOTICE AND OPPORTUNITY TO CURE. In the event Developer fails to complete
the Work during the Term of this Agreement or any extension hereof, the Developer shall
be considered in Default. Upon discovery of the Default, the City shall serve upon the
bBeveloper written notice of such Default. Developer shall then have fifteen {15) days from
the date of mailing of said notice in which to cure the Default. In the event of a Default,
should the Developer fail to cure the Default within fifteen (15) days from the date of
notice, the City shall then have the right to complete the Work, to include, without
limitation, payment of all third-party claims for labor and material, after which the
Developer shall be liable to the City for all costs incurred in completing the Work, such
amount to be due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt of an itemized invoice from
the City detailing the costs incurred by the City. In the event Developer fails to reimburse
the City for the costs shown on the foregoing invoice, the City may thereafter exercise all
rights and remedies available at law and equity.

2. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

A. WARRANTY. Developer warrants to the City that the Work, upon completion, will be free of
defects and in conformity with all applicable standards, to include requirements of the Elko
City Code and any plans approved by the City pertaining to the Work.

B. TERMINATION, BINDING EFFECT, DELEGATION AND OTHER MATTERS. This Agreement may
not be amended, modified or terminated except by an agreement in writing and approved by
the Developer and the Elko City Council. This Agreement and all of the covenants, terms,
conditions and/or provisions herein contained shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. Notwithstanding any other
provision contained in this Agreement, neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests
or obligations under this Agreement may be assigned or delegated by any party without the
prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement is not intended to confer any rights
or benefits to any entity other than to the City and to Developer; accordingly, there are no
third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement.

C. CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes a contract under and shall be
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada. Both parties have had the
opportunity to review this Agreement with the assistance of legal counsel Accordingly, the
parties agree that the normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved
against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement.



D. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of
which shall have the force and effect of an original, and all of which shall constitute but ane
document,

E. NOTICES. All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed given upon
the earlier of the actual receipt or two {2} days after being mailed by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: if to City, to c/o Michele Rambo, {or the
then-current} Development Manager, 1751 College Avenue, Elko, Nevada 89801; if to
Developer, to: Koinonia Development, LP, 207 Brookwoaod Drive, Elko, NV 89801.

F. CITY'S AUTHORITY. This Agreement is not intended to supersede the authority granted by
law to the City. Therefore, nothing in this Agreement shzll be construed or implied to require
the City’s planning or other regulatory boards or departments (however designated) to
approve any plans, permits, maps or other documents pertaining to any aspect of the Work
or other action described in this Agreement.

G. TIME OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence and a material provision of this Agreement.

H. INDEMNIFICATION. Developer hereby agrees to hold harmless, indemnify and defend the
City (including, without limitation, the City's officers, agents and employees) against and to
all claims, demands, actions, suits, liability, cost and expense, including defense expenses, {to
include, without limitation, suits for damages and injuries to persons or property) that are
claimed to have resulted from the acts or omissions of Developer {including without
limitation its agents, employees and/or contractors) in any manner pertaining to the Work.

h

I. JURISDICTION AND VENUE. The District Court for the Fourth ludicial District, in and for the
County of Elko, State of Nevada, shall have jurisdiction and venue over all disputes arising
from or in relation to this Agreement.

1. INTEGRATION. This Agreement represents and contains the entire Agreement and
understanding among the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and
supersedes and replaces all prior oral and written agreements and understandings with
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and no representation, warranty, condition,
understanding or agreement of any kind with respect to the subject matter hereof shall be
relied upon by the parties unless incorporated herein. This Agreement shall be construed as
a complete novation of any prior agreements relating to the subject matter of this
Agreement.

K. DOCUMENTS PROVIDED TO CITY ARE PUBLIC. This Agreement, together with any
documents associated with the Work, may be recorded in any public system of records, to
include the records of the Elko County Recorder. Under no circumstances shall Developer
assert a right to confidentiality or an intellectual property interest in documents or other
information provided to the City in relation to the Work.

L. ATTORNEY FEES. In the event the City is required to pursue any action to enforce any term
or condition in this Agreement, it shall be entitled to reasonable attorney's fees and court
costs.

M.SEVERABILITY. In the event one or more of the provisions, or portions thereof, of this
Agreement is determined to be illegal or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement
shall not be affected thereby and each remaining provision or portion thereof shall continue
to be valid and effective and shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law,



N. HEADINGS. The headings of sections and subsections of this Agreement are inserted for
convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute part of this Agreement or to affect
the construction hereof,

0. NO AGENCY, PARTNERSHIP OR JOINT VENTURE. Nothing herein contained shall be
construed to create an agency, partnership or joint venture between the parties.

P. REMEDIES NOT EXCLUSIVE. No remedy provided by this Agreement, to include the right to
make a claim against a bond or other guaranty, shall be exclusive. The City shall have the
right to pursue any remedies provided under this Agreement, or by law or equity,
simuitaneously or in sequence at its sole discretion.

Q. PERFORMANCE GUARANTY 15 NOT EQUIVALENT TO ACCEPTANCE OF THE WORK.
Developer acknowledges that posting a2 performance guaranty for the remaining Work does
not constitute acceptance of the subdivision improvements by the City. City Council
acceptance and the beginning of the maintenance period will only occur once all subdivision
improvements have been completed, have been certified by the project engineer of record,
and have been inspected and approved by all appropriate City departments.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement in duplicate the day and year
first above written.

CITY - THE CITY OF ELKO, DEVELOPER - KOINONIA DEVELOPMENT, LP
a municipal corporation

By: By:

REECE KEENER, Mayor

Its:

ATTEST:

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk






MOUNTAIN VIEW TOWN HOMES - UNIT 1

Public Improvement Estimate
March 15, 2020

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITPRICE UNIT QTY EXTENSION
Mobilization
1 Mobilization $ 5,000.00 L.S. 1 5 5,000.00
2  Erosion Control 2,500.00 L.S. 1 2,500.00
3  Traffic Control 1,000.00 L.S. 1 1,000.00
Adjustments & Removals
4  Adjust Existing Valve Box 500.00 Each 2 1,000.00
5 Remove Existing Concrete 500 SF, 412 2,060.00
6 Remove Existing Pavement 200 SF. 2,285 4,570.00
7 Remove Existing Waste Materials 500 C.Y. 480 2,400.00
Earthwork
8  Clearing & Grubbing 2,000.00 Acres 4 7,760.00
9 Unclassified Excavation 200 C.Y. 7,297 14,594.00
10 Unclassified Embankment 3.00 CY. 6,305 18,915.00
Sanitary Sewer
11 8" SDR-35 PVC Sanitary Sewer 4500 LF. 496 22,320.00
12 48" Type 1 Sanitary Sewer Manhole 4,200.00 Each 1 4,200.00
13 48" Type 2 Sanitary Sewer Manhole 4,200.00 Each 1 4,200.00
14  Sanitary Sewer Cleanout 1,500.00 Each 1 1,500.00
15 4" Sanitary Sewer Service 1,500.00  Each 12 18,000.00
Water
16 8" Class 235 PVC Water 4500 LJF. 441 19,845.00
17 6" Class 235 PVC Water 55.00 L.F. 30 1,650.00
18  12"x8" Reducer 1,000.00 Each 1 1,000.00
19 8" Gate Valve 1,250.00 Each 1 1,250.00
20 8" 11-1/4° Bend 500.00 Each 2 1,000.00
21 8" Adapter 250.00 Each 1 250.00
22 8" End Plug 250.00 Each 1 250.00
23 8"x6" Tee 750.00 Each 2 1,500.00
24 6" Gate Valve 1,000.00 Each 2 2,000.00
25  Fire Hydrant 4,500.00 Each 2 9,000.00
26 1" Water Service 2,500.00 Each 12 30,000.00

Page 10of 2



MOUNTAIN YIEW TOWN HOMES - UNIT 1

Public Improvement Estimate
March 15, 2020

ITEM DESCRIPTION UNITPRICE UNIT QTY EXTENSION
Storm Drain
27 8" ADS "N-12" HDPE Storm Sewer 50.00 L. 141 7,050.00
28 10" ADS "N-12" HDPE Storm Sewer 5000 LF. 111 5,550.00
29 12" ADS "N-12" HDPE Storm Sewer 50.00 L. 186 9,300.00
30 36" ADS "N-12" HDPE Storm Sewer 60.00 LF. 159 9,540.00
31 48" Type 1 Storm Sewer Manhole 4,200.00 Each 1 4,200.00
32 60" Type 1 Storm Sewer Manhole 4,500.00 Each 2 0,000.00
33  Type 3R Drop Inlet 2,000.00 Each 2 4,000.00
34  Type 3R Drop Inlet - Modified 2,000.00 Each 2 4,000.00
35 Type 4R Drop Inlet 2,500.00  Each 1 2,500.00
Surfacing
36 Type 2, Class B, Aggregate Base 4500 C.Y. 385 17,325.00
37 Type 2 Curb & Gutter 27.00 L. 674 18,198.00
38 Type 2 Curb & Gutter w/ Apron 25.00 SF. 472 11,800.00
39 Typel Curb & Gutter 27.00 LF. 63 1,701.00
40 Type 1 Barrier Curb 25.00 LF. 128 3,200.00
41 6" Valley Gutter 11.00 SF. 253 2,783.00
42 4" Sidewalk 575 S.F 1,937 11,137.75
43 3" Plantmix Bituminous Surface 2.60 SF. 11,444 29,754.40
44  Seal Coat 0.10 S.F. 11,444 1,144.40
Miscellaneous
45  Street Lights 3,000.00 Each 2 6,000.00
46  Stop & Street Sign 500.00 Each I 500.00
Public Utilities
47  Electric 4500000 L.S. 1 45,000.00
48 Telephone 8,000.00 L.S. 1 8,000.00
49  Television 4,000.00 L.S. 1 4,000.00
50 Natural Gas 15,000.00 L.S. 1 15,000.00
Construction Total $ 408,448
Davis Bacon Wage Rates 150% L.S. 61,267
Construction Engineering 35% LS. 14,296
Public Improvement Estimate Total 5 484,011

Page 20of 2





















Moo BT IALT R ) benSas ity vty i Sy e e et S Bt g

AV il Jkes N0

- T T P ALl Tyrves Aa . ST v e Te
T o e s ey Y i T e
T
T TTEw R

cansn 5w - v

e TG o e > e

L 7o
ey WOYAIN TID
FOAE S 4
SaLLEL
r
DRTULINTIND Seli FHVRF
W
3

u - Upims A
3 W Mm - | J—_s ¥ N |_
ﬁ w T T P o
K R ] BRI Pt
o TORTIOAS BV N P Mr L N BEATOY ¥ 7 TRRG Frem e M o dnds T
_m M m . — ol TS Wi CRE EAAN 18 DT i N See e ] o 3 e -
=B e et e ot et e 1
Mmm UGN £0f PR 7 JTO MG FETE e 2R 23 ey e 2
mmm
34
s
mem
7m i
Ha S
233
15§
mm m W00 MR TN R W SISO MY 17617 XO8 TR ¥ IMOTeO YRl

TR
Apom ) v Farct s

LF GRCENT

—_—FT " i olbo

]
i
EEI B
-
‘1“ - 1
1

¥

|

I

B = el

]
I

—_
—
H ;l
]
LN
|
I
:i
-

e
i
1
==
1
}
|
i
|
%
]
|
—

AL ke f




T Orw WG WAV RO
Juiel Juki # I N0t W
" bl I A Y NG AL P SR M W B G TR SURAD B
4 e T S P W S ATRLIY M TS L Sve S
g Lravnter
e b T 2 TR M TNV LEF Sy e AOAD TRE SEracn) DN TH
e — —-t THALEE Ak ALV B RO LNMYEN W BN SB/ B
[l hateld w2 vl
L SLS Py v Ty Sy BT B TR Tl e BOE
Phamting ==
u"ﬂ\\ B, B P S 3, B A TV e S PR 40F W e
= = L T SO Il S Y 348 4 LT (P 3 88 R
7 ¢ S SO 40 M TR 3, B e LA By LN TReE FOW T
L X AN LTI T 2 JoF TS B B TRIDES DRl a3

L o ol
vy wTAOW DUty

Y B B B A RS NTES BT §

——— 1L To L e mmemes A iz
E E+ T T T prhalmbnry g Jrr k! Tl ¥ i T LNV N O KWL D LDR Py SOt
i w it P DR By o
ot o st £ s o 2 i 28 o 7
_ A ] B VIR AN SRR
WD S ROy e Sl W DL 1 Tany WRey YN
w A T D T ReT et s N e et
ey 2 ome sy
B+
AT
s m i ] [t 2
ER 3 ot N
g e - . SaE
mm - - § | Y
g ] | ==
2 X S
52 T EE
Tax - 3] “U.M. o xmw i
w ﬂom o S ' k|
v“__u e L ==
T - 1 e 3
MMW AL e
ia
38 e r
& § e s e
XL a2t aiipm
m e LI VT & B TV WAALY LY TY Y
1 = e e g SHLS LI L, =
3 T R T A AT e i T e e ¥

T A e £
D B e alive TR (=) mt) bt PR SR D BPELine 5 -0 W8] S W VD SWiTer B fo B i W-3 iget) Jid &V YD AP M TRE MR @M T B

I— o — urcaono
aal
=4
i
!
]
i
1
}:
i
Iy
1
1
4
]1
i
19
1
1
]
:
i
|
!
*
¥
H
-
I
f
!
]
i
[}
Y
1
¥

— T u

Jy 5 ¥ I

i
|
i
A
£
i
'
¥
t
H
1
i
i
i
%

e PE T ST e Y et S MRMERT T W

S HHE

A iy s P s SLiSaily % B LN BT T S

1
¥
4

SAHVTD Sov MOB ubinalll LA S0s MK JAD e SRSV i B D idaf TRA SO W BLH VISR

¥ 3
.lnlillE-Ill‘llﬂt'!!l!lllillll«g!i:!!ll!lih!!hli: L] ..f

ST
N
i
t
i
!
|
i
|
:
£
]
3
!
i
]
i
i
H
i

i g
1)

b

!

}

i

N
By
0
H)
P
Bl
i
i
i
Bl
i
15
it
b g
i e
ay &f &
it
vl

s

",

l -
oL
0
N
@D
|




rOTARS

ENYLIF NIMIS MUOLS P ANVLNYS
SONIAYH] NOLLNTMISNGD SLS
I HYGRAN LINA = SINON NADL ATIA NTYINOON

i e o
R I
: T
L= R
OZJd di i b
rae L T
! si'i?.-si!i'i =
ig]iﬁ!:gﬁ =
lh'z, S
: 3
F
=g -1%
E AR |‘!
u;’ o
|t i g'
ik il
il
Iy :
H
i
i
» \E]]! a
ilz’\[]i i
i 22 1
igaiﬁi
g
] i i
iy § Fil
Ti=l= a i= ; E i
. B
; | HE
ii@‘ - i
i }:g [;"i% )
plif [p i)
@@g'@i?ﬁﬁ %sni oo 0 ©

1 W DA L 3 LIRK MY U M R mell SNCLT e X O BT SO

it e

6 bl ey e TR (M Y W B M- Beal B I Y

B (AN Beac SIS IO SEIEPIT M WATYY SRt S G P
e gl Mk AR 8 Pt ST @ e QA o

& Y ) Bu el o e RIY # m
3 A AP it dalee? Pt il B v G s Cndf v

# St Rl wor f WD) P ATEPE o ShEe AN

Lol
1 e i vt seeemyl %) W
1 wweaad FEFE ewl B fu ki oo BN

B ardl o mppall) whmr s e o S WU w Ay RAITI W STV

& At S
o

o AR N AL BT feminif - S SET) FAE o e, SPUSme R

Sadd TARY KOWOW X EAMGUT

LASTRAL CUMMIT PION ANGES

o o o

vl T

IR L MEAL COMMITTION

MY 7 (O DS WALl

9 Tt b L TR TR WP Tit et A | ¢ e ey AT 1R




Agenda ltem [{L.B.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a slope easement for grading
associated with the Mountain View Townhomes subdivision, and matters related thereto.
FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background Information: Due to the existing topography of the development site, the
applicant’s engineer is proposing off-site grading onto City of Elko-owned property

(a portion of Mountain View Park). A condition of approval of the Tentative Map
was that a slope easement be granted to allow for this off-site grading.

This slope easement was considered by the City Council at the April 28, 2020
meeting. However, the recommended motion presented by staff was incorrect. At
this time, Staff is bringing this item back for an appropriate motion, MR

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Proposed Easement and Legal Description

Recommended Motion: Approve the slope easement for grading associated with the
Mountain View Townhomes subdivision as presented.

Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review: David Stanton, City Attorney
Council Action:
Council Agenda Distribution:  Koinonia Development, LP

207 Brookwood Drive

Elko, NV 89801

clkoluke ™ gmail.com

High Desert Engineering, LLC
640 Idaho Street
Elko, NV 89801

ichullew @fronticrnet.net

Created on 05/04/20 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page10of 1



EXHIBIT “A”
Slope Easement

City of Elko, Nevada

March 17, 202¢

A slope easement located within Section 9, Township 34 North, Range 55 East, M.D.B.& M., City of Elko,
Elko County, Nevadu, more particnlarly described as follows:

Commcncing at the monument located at the intersection of North Fifth Street and Tasha Way as
shown on the Boundary Line Adjustment Record of Survey tor Koinonia Development, LP, and the City
of Elko, Nevada, filed in the office of the Elko County Recorder, Elko, Nevada, as document number
765673; thence South 32°09'14” West, a distance of 40.00 fcet to the most casterly comer of Adjusted
Parcel No. | as shown on said Boundary Linc Adjustment Record of Survey; thence South 32°09°14”
West, along the southeast boundary of said Adjusted Parcel No. 1, a distance of 125.00 feet to the most
southcrly comer of said Adjusted Parcel No. 1, being Comer No. 1, the True Point of Beginning;

thence South 32°09° 14" West, a distance ol 43.00 feet 1o Comer No. 2;

thence North 57°50'46" West, a distance ol 298.00 feet to Comer No. 3;

thence South 72°09° 14" Wesl, a dislance of 84.85 feet to Comer No. 4;

thence North 57°50°46" West, a distance 0f 484.21] feet to Comer No. 5;

thence North 32°09'14" East, a distance of 33.00 feet to Comer No. §, being the most westerly comer of
Parcel No. 4 as shown on said Boundary Linc Adjustment Record of Survey;

thence South 57°50°46" Last, along the southwesterly boundaries of said Parcel No. 4 and Adjusted Parcels
No. 3 and No. 2 as shown on said Boundary Linc Adjustment Record of Survey, a distance of 455.77 feet to
Comer No. 7;

thence North 72°09"14” East, along the southerly boundary of snid Adjusted Parce! No. 2, a dislance of
97.91 feet ta Comer No. §;

thence South 57°50°46" Lnsi, along the southwesterly boundaries of said
Adjusled Parcels No. 2 and No, 1, 318.05 feet e Corner Na, 1, the Point of

Beginning, containing an area of 32,684 square fect, more or less. ’ A é_{._ Ci % "
e talsod

iy \ - ca Y~
N Og{é}%elfg{ \5‘3}5

Reference is hereby made ta Exhibit “B”, City of Elko, Nevada, Public
Utility & Drainage Eascment in Section 9, T. 34 N, R.5S E,, MD.B.& M.,

attached hereto and made a part hereof.

HIGH DESERT Engineering, LLC
Thomas C. Ballew
Nevada PI_S. 5072

page 1 of 1

640 Idiaho Street
Elko, NV 89807

(775) 738-4053



NORTH FIFTH STREET

236.75°
‘46" W 31805 -2[

N 3209°14" E

N 3575048 W 298.00°

200.00"

N 5750'46" W
N S750'45" w

ifJ
I3

aTY OF ELXO, NEVADA
APN 001-810-075
PARCEL 1, FRE 755673

LINE TABLE
BEARING
5 320994 W
5 J209'4" W
Gemerus)
i EXHIBIT “B"
N 7209147 £ HIGH m
DESERT CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA
0 ENGINEERING SLOPE EASEMENT

p LI.C 540 IDAHO STREET
SCALE: 1°=150 %) Ve a0en IN
NTERNET.NET SECTION 9, T.34 N., R.55 £, M.D.B.& M,













Agenda ltem 11.D.

10.

11.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible approval of a Performance/Maintenance
Agreement for subdivision improvements associated with the Townhomes at Ruby View
subdivision, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background Information: Elke City Code 3-3-21 requires the subdivider to have executed
and filed an agreement between the subdivider and the City for the required subdivision
improvements, including stipulations on the timeframe for when those improvements are to
be completed, and to post a performance guarantec in accordance with Elko City Code 3-3-
22. As part of the conditions of approval for Final Map 1-20, the Planning Commission
recommended that the agreement be approved by the City Council and be entered into by
the developer within 30 days of the City Council’s approval of the Final Map. MR

Budget information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount availuble: N/A
Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Suppiemental Agenda Information: Performance/Maintenance Agreement
Recornmended Motion: Approve the Performance/Maintenance Agreement for subdivision
improvements associated with the Townhomes at Ruby View subdivision and require that
the developer enter into the agreement within 30 days.
Prepared By: Michele Rambo, AICP, Development Manager
Committee/Other Agency Review: David Stanton, City Attorney

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:  Kelly Builders, LL.C
209 Raptor Court
Elko, NV 89801

kelly bailders o frontierivt.net

Carter Engineering, LLC
PO Box 794

Elko, NV 89803
lanalcarters LIVE.COM

Created on 05/04/20 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



AGREEMENT TO INSTALL IMPROVEMENTS
AND PROVIDE MAINTENANCE GUARANTY

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _12th dayof __May _ , 2020, by and between
the CITY OF ELKO, a municipal corporation organized and existing under the laws of the State of Nevada,
hereinafter referred to as the “City," and Keily Builders, LLC, a Nevada Limited Liability Company,
hereinafter referred to as "Developer.”

RECITALS

A. WHEREAS, Developer is subdividing certain property within the City, the subdivision being
generally known as Townhomes at Ruby View, into ten {10) separate residential parcels and 1
common parcel by means of a subdivision map, identified by the City as Final Map No. 1-20;

B. WHEREAS, Elko City Code, Title 3, Chapter 3, requires that a developer of a subdivision {as that
term is used in NRS 278.320(1)) enter into an Agreement to Install Improvements;

C. WHEREAS, the City has approved the Engineer’s Cost Estimate for the required subdivision
improvements (set forth in Exhibit A and made a part hereof) and has determined that the cost
of the required subdivision improvements is expected to be in the amount of Four Hundred
Thousand, Seven Hundred Forty-Five Dollars and Fifty Cents ($400,745.50), which amount
provides the basis for calculating the amount of the Maintenance Guaranty;

D. WHEREAS, the Developer intends to complete the required subdivision improvements with its
own resources pursuant to Etko City Code Section 3-3-21(A)(3)(a) and 3-3-22(A)(1), and in
conformity with the construction plans approved by the City {attached as Exhibit 8 and made a
part hereof) prior to certification of the final map;

E. WHEREAS, Elko City Code 3-3-21{A})(4} requires that all subdivision improvements identified in
the agreement to install improvements shall be completed within a specified period, not to
exceed two (2) years, to the satisfaction of the City;

F. WHEREAS, the City approved the Final Map on May 12, 2020;

G. WHEREAS, pursuant to Elko City Code Section 3-3-22(B){3), the Developer shall file with the
Clerk of the City a maintenance guaranty to ensure the maintenance, adequacy and condition of
all improvements required by this Agreement for a period of one {1} year after the subdivision
improvements are accepted by the City. The maintenance guaranty may be In any form
permitted in Section 3-3-22(B){1) for a performance guaranty and shall be in the amount of
Forty Thousand, Seventy-Four Dollars, and Fifty-Five Cents ($40,074.55) (hereinafter referred
to as the “Maintenance Guaranty”);

H. WHEREAS, in the event the Develoger fails to complete all the required subdivision
improvements tn accordance with the terms of this Agreement, the Developer shall be in
default of this Agreement and the City shall be entitled to pursue all available legal remedies.

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual covenants and conditions on the part
of the respective parties to be performed, the parties hereby agree as follows:



1) REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS, CERTIFICATION, MAINTENANCE GUARANTY, AND ACCEPTANCE AND
CERTIFICATION OF THE FINAL MAP

A

COMPLETION OF WORK AND MAINTENANCE GUARANTY. Developer agrees to complete
the improvements shown on the construction plans attached as Exhibit B hereto in the
manner set forth in this Agreement and in conformity with Elko City Code 3-3-21{A){4)
{requiring the improvements to be completed to the satisfaction of the City) {(hereinafter
the “Work”) within twenty-four (24} months of the Effective Date, unless otherwise
extended in accordance herewith, and Developer shall pay or cause to be paid all claims for
labor and materials used to perform the Work. During the construction of the subdivision
improvements, the Developer may, at its option, guarantee performance of the remaining
subdivision improvements with a performance guaranty that conforms to ECC Sections 3-3-
21{A}3}{b) and 3-3-22.

ENGINEER’'S ESTIMATE, CERTIFICATION AND SUBMISSION OF WORK.

1) Developer agrees to, at its own expense, contract with a licensed engineer in the State of
Nevada to oversee the construction of the subdivision improvements, oversee all required
testing and verification of materials to ensure construction of the subdivision improvements
in accordance with all federal, state and local requirements and provide an engineer’s
estimate, which must be approved by the City. The total engineer’s estimate must be an
amount no less than the full cost of the following improvements: (a) improvements required
under Section 3-3-20 of the Etko City Code; (b) improvements shown on the construction
plans prepared and approved in accordance with Section 3-3-18 of the Elko City Code; (c)
the cost of required inspection and testing by a properly licensed engineer to oversee the
quality assurance and quality control necessary to ensure certification for the construction
of the approved construction plans; (d) the cost to replace any existing streets, utilities or
other improvements that are included in the required improvements as shown on the
construction plans; {e) the cost to prepare the as-built drawings and any associated
documents; and {f} incidental expenses associated with the foregoing Work.

2) The Work shall be certified by the Developer’s Engineer {(who shall be a registered
engineer, licensed in the State of Nevada) and submitted to the City for possible acceptance
of the Work before the City conducts the subdivision final inspection and no later than
twenty-four {24) months after the Effective Date. Upon certification of the Work, the
Developer's Engineer shall provide the City with a certificate attesting to the adequacy of
the Work and compliance with all requirements set forth in this Agreement, to include,
without limitation, the construction specifications, codes and standards set forth in the
Orange Book.

3) The certification by the Developer’s engineer shall include: {a) the results of all required
testing, presented in an organized manner by material type and category of wark; (b)
references to the sections of the Orange Book that correspond to the required testing for
the material type and category of work; {c} the frequency of the required testing; (d) photo
documentation for any components of the Work which cannot be certified by testing (i.e.
special construction of utility crossings); and {e) an “as-built” drawing of the Work.



4} The City Council shall not accept the Work without a complete and comprehensive
certification of the Work by the Developer’s engineer.

g

MAINTENANCE PERIOD. Notwithstanding the Term of this Agreement, the maintenance
period shall commence on the date the City Council accepts the Work and shall continue
thereafter for a period of twelve {12} months. In satisfaction of its requirement to provide a
Maintenance Guaranty, Developer shall, prior to acceptance of the Work, in conformance
with Elko City Code 3-3-22(B}(3), provide the City with a Maintenance Guaranty in a form
that complies with Elko City Code Section 3-3-22(B) in the amount of Forty Thousand,
Seventy-Four Dollars, and Fifty-Five Cents ($40,074.55), which amount is not less than ten
percent {10%} of the total cost of the required subdivision improvements. If maintenance is
required during the maintenance period, the City wili provide fifteen (15) caiendar days’
written notice of the required maintenance work to the Developer and the Developer must
thereafter complete the required maintenance work. If the Developer fails to complete the
maintenance work within the fifteen {15) calendar day period, without limiting any other
rights or remedies avaitable, the City may complete or have the maintenance work
completed and use the Maintenance Guaranty to satisfy the costs thereof. The certification
of the Final Map is, without limitation, conditioned upon Developer providing the
Maintenance Guaranty.

D. CERTIFICATION OF FINAL MAP. The City will not certify the Final Map until:

1) The Agreement has been approved by the City Council in conjunction with Final Map
approval; ’

2} The Agreement has been fully executed and filed with the City Clerk’s office;

3) The Developer has completed the Wark as required under the Agreement, or a
performance guaranty that complies with ECC Sections 3-3-21(A){3)(b) and 3-3-22
has been pasted with the Elko City Clerk for the remaining Work;

4) The Developer has filed with the Elko City Clerk the Maintenance Guaranty,
calculated in the manner set forth herein and otherwise meeting the requirements
of this Agreement and the Eiko City Code;

5) The City Council has accepted the subdivision improvements, or a performance
guaranty that complies with ECC Sections 3-3-21(A)(3)(b) and 3-3-22 has been
posted with the Elko City Clerk for the remaining Work;

6} The Developer has acquired all other jurat certifications required by the Nevada
Revised Statutes, the Elko City Code and this Agreement; and

7} All other Final Map requirements set forth in the Nevada Revised Statutes and the
Elko City Code have been met.

E. EFFECTIVE DATE. The Effective Date of this Agreement shall be May 12, 2020, which is the
date the City approved the Final Map, and this Agreement shall operate retroactively to that
date, except where otherwise specificaily stated herein.




F. TERM. The Term of this Agreement shall be twenty-four {24) months from the Effective

Date, unless the Work is completed and accepted by the City prior to the expiration of the
foregoing twenty-four (24) month period, in which event the Term shall expire on the date
the Work is accepted by the City. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the City may, upon a
written request and showing by the Developer of good cause, grant an extension of time to
complete the Work for an additional twelve (12) months thereafter {with a corresponding
extension of the Term); provided, no such extension shall be given unless: (a) the Developer
has satisfactorily performed its duties under this Agreement to date; {b) the Developer has
diligently and in good faith attempted to complete the Work within the aforementioned
twenty-four {24) month period, but has been unable to do so due to events beyond the
Developer’s control; and {c) the Maintenance Guaranty has been provided to the Elko City
Clerk.

@

DESCRIPTION OF WORK AND CONDITIONS. In addition to any other requirements
contained herein, the Work shall not be accepted by the City unless the Developer fully
satisfies the following requirements:

{1) COMPLIANCE WITH CITY CODE. Developer shall perform the Work in a manner
that fully complies with the Elko City Code.

(2) STANDARDS. The Work shalt be completed in accordance with the plans,
specifications and conditions approved by the City and in accordance with
requirements otherwise set forth in this Agreement, to include requirements
incorporated by reference.

(3] PRECONSTRUCTION CONFERENCE, Prior to the initiation of the construction of
any roadway, drainage, water or sewer improvements included in the Work, the
Developer shall schedule and participate in a preconstruction conference with
Developer’s contractor(s) and the City Development Manager or the City's
designee(s).

(4} AS-BUILT PLANS. Developer shall provide complete as-built drawings of all
street, water, sewer and drainage improvements to the City prior to the
subdivision final inspection.

(5) SUBDIVISION CONDITIONS. Developer shall satisfy all subdivision approval
conditions established hy or at the direction of the City Council and/or the City
Planning Cormmission.

{6) ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATE. Before the subdivision final inspection, Developer's
engineer (who shall be a registered engineer, licensed in the State of Nevada)
shall provide the City with a certificate certifying the adequacy of the Waork
and compliance with alf requirements set forth in this Agreement, to include,
without limitation, City standard construction specifications, codes and
standards.

H. FINAL COMPLETION AND ACCEPTANCE OF WORK. Approval of the final completion and
acceptance of the Wark shall be at the discretion of the City. The Work shall not be
accepted unless and until it satisfies the requirements of this Agreement, to include the



[=

conditions set forth in Section 1 (REQUIRED IMPROVEMENTS, CERTIFICATION,
MAINTENANCE GUARANTY, ACCEPTANCE AND CERTIFICATION OF THE FINAL MAP).
Developer shall request that the City inspect the Work no later than thirty (30) days prior to
the end of the Term. The City shall have the authority to suspend the Work, in whole or in
part, for such period as it may deern necessary due to unsuitable weather or other
unfavorable conditions or the failure of Developer to comply with the reguirements
contained in this Agreement, to include compliance with the standard construction
specifications of the City.

DEFAULY, NOTICE AND OPPORTUNITY TO CURE. In the event Developer fails to complete
the Work during the Term of this Agreement or any extension hereof, the Developer shall
be considered in Default. Upon discovery of the Default, the City shall serve upon the
Developer written notice of such Default. Developer shall then have fifteen {15} days from
the date of mailing of said notice in which to cure the Default. In the event of a Default,
should the Developer fail to cure the Default within fifteen (15) days from the date of
notice, the City shall then have the right to complete the Work, to include, without
limitation, payment of all third-party claims for labor and material, after which the
Developer shall be liable to the City for all costs incurred in completing the Work, such
amount to be due and payable within thirty (30) days of receipt of an itemized invoice from
the City detailing the costs incurred by the City. in the event Developer fails to reimburse
the City for the costs shown on the foregoing invoice, the City may thereafter exercise all
rights and remedies available at law and equity.

2. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS.

A.

WARRANTY. Developer warrants to the City that the Work, upon completion, will be free of
defects and in conformity with all applicable standards, to include requirements of the Elko
City Code and any plans approved by the City pertaining to the Waork.

B. TERMINATION, BINDING £FFECT, DELEGATION AND OTHER MATTERS. This Agreement may

not be amended, modified or terminated except by an agreement in writing and approved by
the Developer and the Elko City Council. This Agreement and all of the covenants, terms,
conditions and/or provisions herein contained shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit
of the parties hereto and their respective successors and assigns. Notwithstanding any other
provision contained in this Agreement, neither this Agreement nor any of the rights, interests
or obligations under this Agreement may be assigned or delegated by any party without the
prior written consent of the other party. This Agreement is not intended to confer any rights
or benefits to any entity other than to the City and to Developer; accordingly, there are no
third-party beneficiaries to this Agreement.

CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement constitutes a contract under and shall be

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Nevada. Both parties have had the
opportunity to review this Agreement with the assistance of legat counsel Accordingly, the
parties agree that the normal rule of construction that any ambiguities are to be resolved
against the drafting party shall not be employed in the interpretation of this Agreement.

. COUNTERPARTS. This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, each of

which shall have the force and effect of an original, and all of which shall constitute but one
document.



E.

.

M.

N.

NOTICES. All notices required to be given under this Agreement shall be deemed given upon
the earlier of the actual receipt or two (2) days after being mailed by registered or certified
mail, return receipt requested, addressed as follows: if to City, to c/o Michele Rambo, {or the
then-current) Development Manager, 1751 College Avenue, Eiko, Nevada 89801; if to
Develaper, to: Kelly Builders, LLC, 209 Raptor Court, Elko, NV 89801.

CITY'S AUTHORITY. This Agreement is not intended to supersede the authority granted by
law to the City. Therefore, nothing in this Agreement shall be construed or implied to require
the City’s planning or other regulatory boards or departments {(however designated) to
approve any plans, permits, maps or other documents pertaining to any aspect of the Work
or other action described in this Agreement.

G. TIME OF THE ESSENCE. Time is of the essence and a material provision of this Agreement.

H. INDEMNIFICATION. Developer hereby agrees to hold harmless, indemnify and defend the

City {including, without limitation, the City’s officers, agents and employees) against and to
all claims, demands, actions, suits, liability, cost and expense, including defense expenses, (to
include, without limitation, suits for damages and injuries to persons or property) that are
claimed to have resulted from the acts or omissions of Developer {including without
limitation its agents, employees and/or contractors) in any manner pertaining to the Work.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE. The District Court for the Fourth Judicial District, in and for the
County of Elko, State of Nevada, shall have jurisdiction and venue over all disputes arising
from or in relation to this Agreement.

INTEGRATION. This Agreement represents and contains the entire Agreement and
understanding among the parties with respect to the subject matter of this Agreement and
supersedes and replaces all prior oral and written agreements and understandings with
respect to the subject matter of this Agreement, and no representation, warranty, condition,
understanding or agreement of any kind with respect to the subject matter hereof shall be
relied upon by the parties unless incorporated herein. This Agreement shall be construed as
a complete novation of any prior agreements retating to the subject matter of this
Agreament,

. DOCUMENTS PROVIDED TO CITY ARE PUBLIC. This Agreement, together with any

documents associated with the Work, may be recorded in any public system of records, to
include the records of the Etko County Recorder. Under no circumstances shall Developer
assert a right to confidentiality or an inteliectual property interest in documents or other
information provided to the City in relation to the Work.

ATTORNEY FEES. In the event the City is required to pursue any action to enforce any term
or condition in this Agreement, it shall be entitled to reasonable attorney’s fees and court
costs.

SEVERABILITY. In the event one or mare of the provisions, or portions thereof, of this
Agreement is determined to be illegal or unenforceable, the remainder of the Agreement
shall not be affected thereby and each remaining provision or portion thereof shall continue
to be valid and effective and shall be enforceable to the fullest extent permitted by law.

HEADINGS. The headings of sections and subsections of this Agreement are inserted for
convenience only and shall not be deemed to constitute part of this Agreement or to affect
the construction hereof.






























SORLNCRLL YOvAIN OM12 Ty
s} SNYLIA ANINIAOHINWI e
Bupeaubig M3IA ABﬂIB 18 SIWOH NMOL 3HL [
WO AR 1 T {1l 277 ‘Bupesuibug joped 27 'sH3aung AN i

A an e Pasiiie et

asetrtmay
anaman

_ F_'W//:w

ﬁg :
£
gl
B b g
i
2 Al
IR
s
I
1k
1o y
M
i _ =
i -
it RIS
J . R
P Al 3 (B
) s 5.
{‘ : L | |
I |
g;i TR _]
i k)
r Yy i
H_ EE gg ‘igj[i ‘-—Ll‘ﬂ\‘!‘
TN Ll
‘5 l ii

SN
Lot il
L ‘
















Agenda Item 1ILE.

10.

1.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and approval of the 2020 City of Elko Land Inventory
update, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020

Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS

Time Required: 10 Minutes

Background Information: City of Elke Land Inventory spreadsheet is to be updated
when necessary. Planning Commission reviewed the modifications at their May 5,
2020 meeting and recommended to City Council to approve the updated land
inventory. CL

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount available: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda information: Spreadsheet, Planning Commission Action Report
Recommended Motion: Approve the updated 2020 City of Elke Land Inventory
Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner
Committee/Other Agency Review: Planning Commission

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 01/29/2019 Council Agenda Action Item Page 1 of 1



CITY OF ELKO Website: www.elkocity.com

Planning Depar‘tment Email: planning@elkocitynv.gov

1751 College Avenue - Elko, Nevada 89801 - (775) 777-7160 - Fax (775) 777-7219

CITY OF ELKO
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION REPCRT
Regular Meeting of May 5, 2020

WHEREAS, the following item was reviewed and considered by the Elko City Planning
Commission on May 5, 2020 per City Code Section 3-4-20 A. 2.:

The 2020 City of Elko land inventory update.
WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, upon review and consideration of the application,

supporting data, public input and testimony, forward a recommendation to City Council to
approve an update to the City Land Inventory.

Attest:

Shelby Archu)eta, Planning Technician

CC: Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk


















Agenda ltem HILF.

10.

[2.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Consideration and possible acceptance of Federal Aviation Administration
CARES ACT Grant, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020
Agenda Category: NEW BUSINESS
Time Required: 5 Minutes
Background Information: The Coronavirus Aid, Relief, and Economic Security
(CARES) signed into law by the President on March 27, 2020, includes $10 billion in
funds to be awarded as economic relief to eligible U.S. airports affected by the
prevention of, preparation for, and response to the COVID-19 pandemic.
Additionally, the CARES Ac¢t provides new funds distributed by various formulas
for all airports that are part of the national airport system. An airport
owner/sponsor may use these funds for any purpose for which airport revenues may
be lawfully used. JI
Budget Impact Statement:

Appropriation Required: $ 1,356,902.00

Budgel amount available:

Fund name: Airport Enterprise
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: Application for Federal Assistance SF-424
Recommended Motion: Authorize Staff to accept award of FAA CARES ACT Grant
Prepared By: Jim Foster, Airport Manager

Committec/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 5/6/2020 Council Agenda Action Sheel Page1of1



OMB Number 4Q40-0004
Expiration Date: 12/31/2022

Application tor Federal Assistance SF-424

*1. Type of Submission: "2. Type of Application - |f Revision, select appropriale letter(s}:
O Preapplication & New
& Application [ continuation *Other (Specify)

[ Changed/Correcied Application ] Revision

*3. Date Received: 4, Applicant ldentifier:

NA EKQ (Elko Regional) Etko, NV

*5b. Federal Entity Identifier: *5b. Federal Award ldentifier:
320005

Siate Use Only:

6. Date Received by State: 7. State Application Identifier;

8. APPLICANT INFORMATION:

*a. Legal Name: City of Elko

*‘b. Employer/Taxpayer Identification Number (EIN/TIN}): *c. Orgenizational DUNS:
88-6000190 08-183-3311
d. Address:
*Street 1: 975 Terminal Way _
Street 2:
*City: ELKO
County:
*State: NV
Province:
*Country: USA: United States
*Zip / Postal Code 89801

e. Organizational Unit:

Department Name: Division Name:

1. Name and contact information of parson to be contacted on matters involving this application:

Prefix: *First Name: Jim

Middle Name:

*Last Name: Foster
Suffix:

Title: Airpoit Manager

Organizalional Affiliation:

*Telephone Number; 775-934-2092 Fax Number:

*Email: joster@elkocitynv.gov




OMB Number: 4040-0004
Expiration Date. 123172022

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

‘9. Type of Applicant 1: Select Applicant Type:

X. Airport Sponsor

Type of Applicant 2: Seiect Applicant Type:

Type of Applicant 3: Setect Applicant Type:

*Other {Specily)

*10. Name of Federal Agency:
Federal Aviation Administration

11, Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance Number:

20.106

CFDA Title:
Airporl Program

*12. Funding Opportunity Number:
NA

*Title:
NA

13. Competition |dentification Number:
NA

Title:
NA

14. Areas Affected by Project (Cities, Counties, Siates, etc.):

“15. Descriptive Title of Applicant’s Project:

Any purpose for which airport funds may be lawfully used, as found in the Office of Airports Revenue Use Policy, except airpost

devetopment or land acquisition.

Attach supporting documents as specified in agency instructions.




OMB Numbar 4040-0004
Expiration Date: 12r31/2022

Application for Federal Assistance SF-424

16. Congressional Districts Of:
*a. Applicant: 2 *b. Program/Project:

Attach an additional list of Program/Project Congressionat Districls if needed.

17. Proposed Project:
‘a. Start Date: NA ’b. End Date: NA

18. Estimaled Funding {$):

‘a. Federal $1,356,902.
*b. Applicant $0
*c. State $0
‘d. Local

*g. Other 30
*{. Program Income $0
‘g. TOTAL $1,356,902.

*19. Is Application Subject to Review By State Under Executive Order 12372 Process?

(] a. This application was made available to the State under the Executive Order 12372 Process for review on

[ b. Program is subject to E.Q. 12372 but has not been selected by the Stale for review.
™ c. Program is not covered by E. O. 12372

*20. Is the Applicant Delinquent On Any Federal Debt? (If “Yes", provide explanation in attachment.)
] Yes Bd No

If “Yes", provide explanation and attach

21. "By signing this application, | cerlify (1) to the stalements contained in the fist of cenlifications** and (2} thai the statemenis
herein are true, complete and accurate to the best of my knowledge. | also provide the required assurances*” and agree to comply
with any resulling terms if 1 accept an award. | am aware that any false, ficlitious, or fraudulent statements or claims may subject
me to criminal, civil, or administrative penalties. (U. S, Code, Title 218, Section 1001)

& *" | AGREE

** The list of cerlificafions and assurances, or an intemet site where you may obtain this list, is contained in the announcement or
agency specific instructions.

Authorized Representative:

Prefix: *First Name: Curtis
Middie Name:

*Last Name; Calder

Sudfix:

*Titte: Airpart Manager

*Telephone Number: 775-777-7110 Fax Number:

* Email. ccalder@elkocitynv.gov

*Signature of Authorized Representative: *Date Signed:




Agenda ftem IV, A.

L

10.

1.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to propose an amendment to Elko
City Code Title 8, Chapter 2, Section 3-2 entitled ‘“Mandatory Installation of
Conduit” and conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 852, and matters related
thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020
Agenda Category: ORDINANCE
Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: Elko City Code Section 8-2-3-2 requires a person
undertaking a public works project or conducting a private excavation within a
public right-of-way to install underground communications infrastructure on behalf
of the City. The underground cemmunications infrastructure is automatically
owned by the City upon installation, at which time the City reimburses the
permittee for the cost of installation. The propesed amendment to City Code Section
8-2-3-2 would permit telecommunications providers to retain exclusive use of
underground communications infrastructure for up to five years after installation in
private excavations, so long as the City is not obligated to reimburse the
telecommunications providers for the cost of installation during that period.
Permittees would be required to offer underground communications infrastructure
for dedication to the City prior to reimbursement for the cost of installation. MR

Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Draft copy of Ordinance No. 852, Title 8, Chapter
2 proposed revisions shown with track changes

Recommended Motion: Meove to propose an amendment to Elke City Code Title 8,
Chapter 2, Section 3-2 entitled “Mandatory Installation of Conduit” and conduct
first reading of Ordinance No. 852.

Prepared By: Scott A. Wilkinson, Assistant City Manager

Committee/Other Agency Review: Legal

Council Action:

Counci! Agenda Distribution:

Created on 5/5/2020 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1



ORDINANCI

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 2, CHAPTER 8, Section 3-2 OF THE ELKO CITY CODE,
ENTITLED “MANDATORY INSTALLATION OF CONDUIT,"” BY PERMITTING
TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROVIDERS TO RETAIN EXCLUSIVE USE OF UNDERGROUND
COMMUNICATIONS INFRASTRUCTURE FOR UP TO FIVE YEARS

WHEREAS, tiko Csty Code Section B-2-3-2 requires, under most circumstances, that a
person undertaking a public works project or conducting a private excavation within a
public right-of-way to install underground communications infrastructure on behalf of the

City;

WHEREAS, Section 8-2-3-2 further provides that underground communications
infrastructure is automatically owned by the City upon installation, at which time the City
reimburses the permittee for the cost of installation;

WHEREAS, certain telecommunications providers desire 1o retain exciusive use of
underground communications infrastructure for up to five years after installation in private
excavations;

WHEREAS, the City Council desires to amend City Code Section 8-2-3-2 to permit
telecommunications providers to retain exclusive use of underground communications
infrastructure for up to five years after installation in private excavations, so long as the City
is not obligated to reimburse the telecommunications providers for the cost of installation
during that period;

WHEREAS, the City Council further desires to require permittees to offer underground
communications infrastructure for dedication to the City prior to reimbursement for the
cost of installation;

NOW THEREFORE, IT BE ORDAINED BY THE CJTY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ELKO, NEVADA.

Section 1: Title 8, Chapter 2, Section 3-2 of the Elko City Code {s hereby amended to read
as follows;

8-2-3-2: MANDATORY INSTALLATION OF CONDUIT:

A. Installatiol onduij ght Vi 1blic Works Projects: ‘
Whenever a pal ... w.ow8ftaki. o puwnlit Veiins e O vt veranens w public right-of-way involving
the planning, construction, reconstruction, or repaving of the public right-of-way, the
project shall inciude, to the maximum extent practical and feasible, installation of
underground communication infrastructure by the person performing the work.






ed

INTTasiruciure.

The City may, at its sole option and expense, require the permittee conducting the
excavalion to extend the excavation, where practical, to permit the connection of the
communications infrastructure to existing communications infrastructure owned by the
City.

Section 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed, but only to the extent of such conflict

Section 3:  if any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this ordinance shall for any
reason be held o be invalid, unenforeeable, or unconstitutional by a court of competent
jurisdietion, the invalidity, unenforeeability or provision shall not affect any remaining
provisions of this ordinance,

Section4:  Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have
this ordinance published by title only, together with the Councilman voting for or against its
passage in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at
least one publication.

Section 5: This Ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned in Section
4,

PASSED AND ADOPTED this dayof ____, 2020 by the following vote of the Elko City
Council.

AYES:

NAYS:



ABSENT:
ABSTAIN:

APPROVED this day of

ATTEST:

KELLY WOOLDRIDGE, City Clerk

QITY OF ELKO

BY:

2020.

REECE KEENER, Mayor



Agenda ltem [V. B,

10.

1.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: First Reading of Ordinance No. 853, an ordinance amending title 5, Chapter 3,
Section 1, of the Elko City Code entitled “Definitions for Animals and Fowl”, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020

Agenda Category: ORDINANCE

Time Required: 5§ MINUTES

Background Information: On April 28, 2020, the City Council initiated this ordinance
at the request of a City of Elko resident to increase the number of laying hens

allowed at private residences, for noncommercial use from two to four. KW

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A

Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Ordinance 853

Recommended Motion: Conduct first reading of Ordinance No. 853, and set for
public hearing, second reading, and possible adoption.

Prepared By: Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Committee/Other Agency Review:
Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 5/6/2020 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1






DOG FANCIER: Any person owning, keeping or possessing on his or her property in safe and adequate
facilities in excess of three (3) dogs as shall be permitted pursuant to subsection 5-3-9C of this chapter.

FOWL: Any and all fowl and poultry, domesticated and wild, male and female, singular and plural.
HOUSEHOLD PETS: The following list of domesticated anitnals are defined as household pets:
A. Domesticated dogs, excluding hybrids with wolves, coyotes or jackals.

Domesticated cats, excluding hybrids with ocelots or margays.

Vietnamese potbelly pig not used for commercial or breeding purposcs.

Domesticated races of golden hamster.

Domesticated races of guinea pigs.

Domesticated races of rats or mice.

O " P o0

Two (2) or less domesticated rabbiis not used for commercial or breeding purposes.
H. Parrots, parakeets or finches.

[. Two (2) or less ducks or doves not used for commercial or breeding purposes.

J. All captive bred canaries.

K. Domeslicated races of goldfish.

L. Aguarium fish, meaning those species which are listed in H. Axelrod and W. Vorderwinklcr,
"Encyclopedia Of Tropical Fishes", 29th edition, 1988, except those species prohibited by the Nevada
division of wildlife.

M. All nonvenomous reptile species, except those species prohibited by the Nevada division of
wildlife.

N. All species of the class Insecta.

O. Two (2) or less chukker, pariridge, valley quail, pheasant, peafowl not used for commercial or
breeding purposes.

P. Gerbils.
Q. Europcan ferrets.
R. Hedgehogs.

S. TPwe2) Four (4) or less laying hens not used for commercial or breeding purposes kept in a
secured chicken coop.

IMPOUND: Shall not include or be construed as the voluntary turning in of any animal or fow! by the
owner or custodian of such animal or fowl,

NEUTERED DOG: A dog, whether male or female, which has been surgically rendered incapable of
producing offspring, as evidenced by a signed statement to that effect by a licensed veterinarian.

NONNEUTERED DOG: A dog, whether male or femalc, which has not been surgically rendered
incapable of producing offspring, as evidenced by a signed statement to that effect by a licensed
veterinarian.



PET SHOP: Any profitmaking or commercial establishment, premises or par thereof, maintained for the
purchase, sale, exchange or hire of animals of any type; except that the term shall not include livesiock
auctions.

PUBLIC PLACES: Includcs streets, alleys, public buildings, parks, schoolyards, and all other property
owned or controlled by the city of Elko, county of Elko or state of Nevada.

RUNNING AT LARGE: Except as herein expressly provided, shall mean within the city and off the
premises of the owner, or custodian of the animal or fowl, and not accompanied by the owner, a member
of the immediate family of ihe owner, or the custodian of such animal or fowl, and controlled by a leash
(not to exceed 8 feet) or at "heel” beside a competent person and obedient to that person's commands.

SECURED CHICKEN COOP: A covered cage or pen which houses poultry and controls free movement.

VETERINARIAN: A person who is validly currently licensed to practice velerinary medicine 1n the state
of Nevada.

WILD ANIMALS AND DOMESTICATED ANIMALS: All living members of the kingdom Animalia,
including those bom or raised in captivity, excepl the following animals which are defined as
domesticated animals:

A. The species Canis familiaris (domesticated dogs, excluding purebred wolves, coyotes or jackals).
Hybrids with wolves are also defined as wild animals unti! a rabies vaccination for wolf hybrids has been
approved by the Nevada state board of veterinary medicine and the city has received notification of such
approval. At such time hybrids with wolves will be defined as domesticated animals.

B. The species Felis catus (domesticated cats, excluding hybrids with ocelots or margays).
The species Equus caballus (domesticated horses).

The specics Equus asinus (donkeys).

mo a

The species Bos taurus (cattle).

The subspecies Ovis aries (domesticated sheep).

o m

Ttie species Capra hircus (domesticated goats).
H. The subspecics Sus scrofa domestica (swine, including Vietnamese potbelly).

. Domesticaied races of the species Gallus domesticus {chicken) or Meleagris gallopavo
(domesticated turkey).

J. Domesticated races of tlie species Mesocricetus auratus (golden hamster).
K. Domesticated races of the species Cavia aperea porcellus (guinea pigs).
L. Domesticated races of rats or mice.

M. Domesticated races of the species Oryctolagus cuniculus (rabbits).

N. All captive bred members of the species of the families Psittaeidae (parrots, parakeets), Anatidae
(ducks, geese), Fringillidae (finches), and Columbidae (domesticated doves and pigeons).

O. All captive bred members of the species Serinius canaria of the class Aves (canaries).

P. Domesticated races of the species Carrassius auratus (goldfish).



Q. Aquarium fish, meaning those species which are listed in H. Axelrod and W. Vorderwinkler,
"Encyclopedia Of Tropical Fishes", 29th edition, 1988, except those species prohibited by the Nevada
division of wildlife.

R. Ail nonvenomous reptile species, except those species prohibited by the Nevada division of
wildlife.

S. All species of the class Insecta.
All members of the subfamily Phaisianae (chukker, partridge, valley quail, pheasant, peafowl).
The species Bison (American bison).
The species Meriones unguiculatus {gerbils).

. The species Llama glama (llama).

The species Mustela putorius (European ferret).

< x £ < < -

The family Erinaceidae (hedgehogs). (Ord. 804, 5-25-2016)

SECTION 2. All ordinances or paris of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed, but
only to the extent of such conflict.

SECTION 3. If any section, paragraph, clause or provision of this Ordinance shall for any
reason be held to be invalid, unenforceable or unconstitutional by any court of competent
jurisdiction, the invalidity, unenforceability of such section, paragraph, clause or provision shall
not affect any remaining provision of this Ordinance.

SECTION 4. Upon adoption, the City Clerk of the City of Elko is hereby directed to have this
ordinance published by titie only, together with the Councilpersons voting for or against its
passage in a newspaper of general circulation within the time established by law, for at least one
publication.

SECTION 5. This ordinance shall be effective upon the publication mentioned, unless
otherwise stated.






Agenda Item V. A.

.

12.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review, consideration, and possible action to accept a petition for the vacation
of a portion of the Juniper Street and 6" Street Right-of-Way, consisting of an area
approximately 3,636 sq. ft., filed by Brian and Dena Starkey, and processed as
Vacation No. 1-20, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020
Agenda Category: PETITION
Time Required: 10 Minutes
Background Information: The City of Elko issued a license agreement in 1987 and
another in 1999 to occupy the area requested to be vacated by this petition. There
have been 3 property owners since that license agreement was issued, and no new
license agreements have been issued. The applicant purchased the property in 2018
and would like to vacate any excess right of way. CL
Budget Information:

Appropriation Required: N/A

Budget amount avajlable: N/A

Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required

Supplemental Agenda Information: Application, map, and Staff memo

Recommended Motion: Accept the petition for vacation and direct Staff to commence
the vacation process by referring the matter to the Planning Commission.

Prepared By: Cathy Laughlin, City Planner

Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Agenda Distribution: Brian and Dena Starkey
435 Jiggs Hwy #4

Spring Creek, NV 89815
butarkey @cowboysrest.ory

Summit Engineering
nitini{esununitny.com

Created on 5/5/2020 Council Agenda Action Sheel Page 1 of 1






VACATION 1-20
Brian and Dena Starkey
APN D01-231-001

PROJECT INFORMATION

PARCEL NUMBER: 001-231-001

EXISTING ZONING: R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential

MASTER PLAN DESIGNATION: Medium Density Residential

EXISTING LAND USE: Developed, Residential adjacent to area to be
vacated

BACKGROUND:

1. The property has been developed as residential land use.

2. The area proposed to be vacated is approximately 900 sq. ft.

3. The City of Elko issued a license agreement to a previous property owner in 1987 and
another in 1999 for the use of the property for a fee.

NEIGHBORHOOD CHARACTERISTICS:
The property is surrounded by:
North: R-Residential / Developed
East: R-Residential / Developed
South: R- Residential / Developed
West: R-Residential / Developed

PROPERTY CHARACTERISTICS:

The property is currently developed.

The property has moderate slope on the unlper Street side.

There is no sndewalk along Juniper Street or 6% Street along the area proposed to be
vacated or along 6™ Street on the applicant’s property adjacent to the area requested to be
vacated.

MASTER PLAN AND CITY CODES:
Applicable Master Plans and City Code Sections are:

NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive

City of Elko Master Plan - Land Use Component

City of Elko Master Plan — Transportation Component

City of Elko Redevelopment Plan

City of Elko Code — Section 8-7 Street Vacation Procedures

MASTER PLAN — Land Use:

1. The Master Plan Land Use Atlas shows the area as Medium Density Residential.
2. R- Single Family and Multiple Family Residential is a corresponding zoning district for
Medium Density Residential.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Land Use component.

Page2 ol 3



VACATION 1-20
Brian and Dena Starkey
APN- 001-231-001

MASTER PLAN - Transportation:

b eSS

The area is accessed from 6th Street.

6th Street is classified as a Residential local.

There is no access off Juniper Street.

The property lacks pedestrian connectivity but will be conditioned for the completion the
public improvements upon approval.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the Master Plan Transportation Component.

REDEVELOPMENT PLAN

The area is located inside the Redevelopment Area.

FINDINGS

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan Land Use
Component

The proposed vacation is in conformance with the City of Elko Master Plan
Transportation component

The proposed vacation is in conformance with NRS 278.479 to 278.480, inclusive.

The proposed vacation is in conformance with City Code 3-2-5(E) and 8-7

STAFF RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends the City Council accept this petition and forward this item to the Planning
Commission for further consideration.

Page 3 of 3






{ t
OWNER(S) OF THE PROPEn I'Y ABUTTING THE AREA BEING h=QUESTED FOR VACATION:

BRIAN & DENA STARKEY, 435 JIGGS HWY #4, SPRING CREEK, NV 89815
(Name) (Address)

OWNER(S) OF THE PROPERTY ABUTTING THE AREA BEING REQUESTED FOR VACATION:

(Name) (Address)

1. Describe the nature of the request: PROPOSED VACATION OF 10" STRIP ALONG
SIXTH STREET AND 35' STRIP ALONG JUNIPER STREET. NONE OF THE AREA
OF VACATION IS CURRENTLY NOR ANTICIPATED TO BE USED FOR PUBLIC
INFRASTRUTURE. PROPOSED VACATION IS IN ACCORDANCE WITH OTHER
RECORDED VACATIONS WITHIN THIS BLOCK. THE TERRAIN OF JUNIPER
STREET PROHIBITS FUTURE WIDENING OF IMPROVEMENTSWITHIN THE
AREA OF THE PROPOSED VACATION.

2. Describe any utilities currently located in the area proposed for vacation, and if any are present
how they will be addressed:

EXISTING GAS LINE, TO REMAIN, NEAR DRIVEWAY WHICH SERVES

698 6TH STREET. ANY OTHER UTILIES THAT MAY EXIST WITHIN THE AREA
OF VACATION ARE TO REMAIN. NOTE THE FIRE HYDRANT IS NOT WITHIN
THE AREA PROPOSED TO BE VACATED.

Use additional pages if necessary

This area intentionally left blank

Revised 12/04/15 Page 2



By My Signature below:

V| | consentto having the City of Elko Staff enter on my property only for the sole purpose of
inspection said property as part of this application process.

| object to having the City of Elko Staff enter onto my property as a part of their review of

this application. (Your objection will not effect the recommendation made by the staff or the final determination
made by the City Planning Commission or the City Council.)

¢/| | acknowledge that submission of this application does not imply approval of this request by

the City Planning Department, the City Planning Commission and the City Council, nor does it in
and of itself guarantee issuance of any other required permits and/or licenses.

v’| | acknowledge that this application may be tabled until a later meeting if either | or my

designated representative or agent is not present at the meeting for which this application is
scheduled.

¢/| | have carefully read and completed all questions contained within this application to the
best of my ability.

Applicant | Agent BRIAN & DENA STARKEY
(Please print or type)

Mailing Address 435 JIGGS HWY #4

Street Address or P.O. Box

SPRING CREEK, NV 89815
City, State, Zip Code

775-397-0241
bstarkey@cowboyrest.org

Phone Number:

Email address:

SIGNATURE:

FOR OFFICE USE ONLY

File No.: _|~20 Date Filed: _2/5/20 _Fee Paid: ﬂgﬂb_u_ﬂ 2228

Revised 12/04/15 Page 3






EXHIBIT “A”
LEGAL DESCRIPTION
PORTION OF JUNIPER STREET & SIXTH STREET
ADJACENT TO APN 001-231-001

A parcel of land located in the Norlheast Quarter of Section 15, Township 34 North, Range 55
East, MDM, being more particularly described as follows:

Commencing at the monument at the centerline intersection of Juniper Street and
Seventh Street;

thence along the centerline of said Seventh Street, South 48°11'00" East a distance of
40.00 feet;

thence departing said centerline, South 41°49'00" West a distance of 40.00 feet to a point
being the most northerly comer of Block 30 of the Map of the Town of Elko, according
to the official map thereof, filed in the office of the County Recorder of Elko County,
Nevada;

thence along the original Southeasterly line of said Juniper Street, South 41°49'00" West
a distance of 200.00 feet to the Southerly comer of Parcel 2 of Quitciaim Deed, Book
1090, Page 236, File No.441849, recorded March 5, 1999, also being the Paint of
Beginning;

thence continuing along said Southeasterly line, South 41°49'00" West a distance of
100.00 feet to the Westerly comner of said Block 30;

thence departing said Southeasterly line and along the original Northeasterly line of Sixth
Street, South 48°11'00" East a distance of 33.00 feet to the southerly corner of the parcel
described in Grant, Bargain, Sale Deed Document No. 750024, recorded December 28,
2018, Official Records;

thence departing said Northeasterly line, South 41°49'00" West a distance of 10.00 feet;
thence North 48°11'00" West a distance of 49.00 feet;

thence North 41°49'00" East a distance of 3.68 feet;

thence from a tangent which bears North 47°27'55" West, along a circular curve to the
right with a radius of 10.00 feet and a central angle of 26°38'07" an arc length of 4.65

feet;

thence North 20°49'48" West a distance of 5.47 feet;



thence along a tangent circular curve to the right with a radius of 10.50 feet and a central
angle of 62°38'48" an arc length of 11.48 feet;

thence North 41°49'00" East a distance of 93.36 feet to the Westerly comer of said Parcel
2;

thence along the Southwesterly line of said Parcel 2, South 48°11'00" East a distance of
31.00 feet to the Point of Beginning,

Said parcel contains an area of approximately 3,636 square feet.

Basis of Bearings: The line between centerline monuments at 3™ and Juniper
Streets and 3™ and Cedar Streets as North 48°11'00" West.

Descriptions Prepared By:

Ryan G. Cook, PLS 15224
Summit Engineering Corporation
5405 Mae Anne Ave.

Reno, NV 89523

775-747-8550

NADWGSVI82504 StarkeyVacation\Survey\Starkey VacationExhibitA.doex









Agenda Item V. B.

10.

11

12.

3.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Tiile: Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day Temporary Retail Liquor License and
issue a Regular Packaged Liquor License, to Jaskaran Raj and Mandeep Kaur, DBA Our
Store, located at 1015 5" Street, Elko, NV 89801, and matters related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE
ACTION

Meeting Date: May 12, 2020

Agenda Category: PETITION
Time Required: 5 Minutes

Background Information: N/A

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: N/A
Budget amount available: N/A
Fund name: N/A
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agenda Information: N/A
Recommended Motion: Ratification of the Police Chief issuing a 30-day Temporary Retail
Liquor License and issue a Regular Packaged Liquor License, to Jaskaran Raj and Mandeep
Kaur, DBA Our Store, located at 1015 5% Sireet, Elko, NV 89801.
Prepared By: Police Chief Ty Trouten

Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action:

Council Agenda Distribution: Jaskaran Raj Mandeep Kaur
2682 Outlook Court 2682 Outlook Court
Elko, NV 89801 Elko, NV 89801

Created on May 6, 2020 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 1 of 1






Agenda ltem V. C.

10.

il

V2.

13.

Elko City Council
Agenda Action Sheet

Title: Review and consideration of a request from Elko High school Graduation
Parade Committee to utilize a different parade route as well as a request for the
City to utilize the community donation fund to pay the parade fee, and matters
related thereto. FOR POSSIBLE ACTION

Meeling Date: May 12, 2020

Agenda Calegory: PETITION, APPEALS, AND COMMUNICATIONS

Time Required: 15 Minutes

Background Information: The City Clerk’s Office received an application by the Elko
High School Graduation Parade Committee to hold a parade for graduation due to
the COVID-19 situation. The parade route is in the agenda packet. The committee
is also requesting the City utilize the Community Donation Fund to pay the parade

fee. KW

Budget Information:
Appropriation Required: $1000.00
Budget amount available:
Fund name: Community Donation Fund
Business Impact Statement: Not Required
Supplemental Agendu Information: Parade application and parade route
Recommended Motion: Pleasure of the Council
Prepared By: Kelly Wooldridge, City Clerk
Committee/Other Agency Review:

Council Action;

Council Agenda Distribution:

Created on 5/6/2020 Council Agenda Action Sheet Page 10f 1






CITY OF ELKO PARADE APPLICANT QUESTIONNAIRE

Name of Parade:_ VO ﬁ\%\n hol  Gradudtion Parade.

The purpose of this worksheet is fo assist city personnel in coordinating our efforts with parade omganizers.

Please answer all questions in as much detal as possible:
Estimated number of atiandees: 2E0(CO¥S) Puus iewoers

Will this event affect nonnal traffic pattems and parking? What p
berlieeded? Mesicleq 9668 K 7 K

Whal are the safely concems for the participants of this event? What are the safety concems for the speclators for this
event? Whal actions are needed to mipimize the salely problems? W‘cﬂ% be needed? Whal stipulations have
bean made for emerngency access? talk. w/ Chied Troedm.

L4

Will there be any dasures? tiles. what are your access plans?
Burns ‘52 ey ;lgnma;g m Q Aclobe
What area wil this event effect? Do you have issh frmnﬂmpmpe@omarsvdmmaybeeffeded?%{ﬁé
Qi £g;;]gc§ poitl e &:@Eﬁﬁ An_remind Shomn
i a sireat re is occuming present us with a plan and equipment list
ﬁ Trockon

90X ety o/ Chigr
Wilmadosuraimhdeanyuseo{[&vadasmﬁghl-of-way?
O

Wﬁo&mloglsﬁcal problems may be encountered? How can the City help?

Wﬂhﬁc%@bbeaﬂemdhyﬂ\eaml? MO we uyid No
liohts:
Will eléciricity be needed for the svent, please explain? A\LO

Wl this event create a Etter problem? How wil that problem be mitigated?_ALO-

Whal provisions will be made for public restrooms for the atiendees?_A l(Y1€.

Wil horses be present? Abp. Wil a City street sweaper be required if so when?_hlD .
















	Minutes
	I.C. AIP-51 Bid Award
	II.A. Final Map 1-20 Kelly Builders
	II.B. Final Map 2-20 Koinonia Development
	III.A. Maintenance Agreement Mountain View Townhomes
	III.B. Easement Mountain View Townhomes
	III.D. Maintenance Agreement Townhomes at Ruby View
	III.E. Land Inventory
	IV.A. Ordinance 852
	IV.B. Ordinance 853
	V.A. Vacation
	V.B. Temp Liquor Our Store
	V.C. Graduation Parade



